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Challenger Institute’s student award winners with Training and Workforce Development Minister Kim Hames at the 2014 Student Awards Ceremony.
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Hon. Dr Kim Hames MLA
MINISTER FOR TRAINING AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 
1 January 2014 – 7 December 2014

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Liz Harris PSM
Chief Executive Officer 
Challenger Institute of Technology

Date: 6 March 2015  

Paddi Creevey OAM
Chair of Governing Council 
Challenger Institute of Technology

Date: 6 March 2015            

Hon. Liza Harvey MLA
MINISTER FOR TRAINING AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 
8 December 2014 – 31 December 2014

In accordance with section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, we hereby submit for your information and presentation to 
Parliament, the Annual Report of Challenger Institute of Technology for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 and the Vocational 
Education and Training Act 1996.
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About Us
Challenger Institute of Technology is Western Australia’s most diverse 
registered training organisation, delivering publicly funded and fee-for-service 
training under the Australian Quality Training Framework to more than 24,000 
course enrolments each year.

Challenger Institute offers more than 350 courses at 10 locations spanning 
a catchment area of 6,000 square kilometres - from Fremantle to the Peel 
region and inland to Murdoch. Challenger is the only state training provider with 
responsibility for servicing both urban and regional communities.

The Institute offers innovative and flexible learning in the following training 
areas and specialist centres:  

• Australian Centre for Applied Aquaculture Research (ACAAR)
• Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training (ACEPT)
• School of Applied Engineering/Oil and Gas
• School of Building and Automotive Technology
• School of Business and Information Technology 
• School of Community Services, Health, Sport and Lifestyle 
• School of Foundation and Cultural Studies 
• School of Hospitality and Tourism 
• School of Maritime Studies
• School of Science and the Environment 

 
Challenger Institute is aligned to industry needs and works closely with more than 400 community and business 
partners to build a skilled and productive workforce and to fill labour shortages. 

The institute delivers training in the workplace and offers workforce development solutions across a range of 
industries. The success of these services is based on fostering strong relationships. Ongoing consultation with 
Industry Advisory Groups actively informs the planning, design and delivery of Challenger’s vocational education 
and training programs. 

AGENCY OVERVIEW
(L-R) ABN Group managing 
director Dale Alcock, Challenger 
CEO Liz Harris and Training and 
Workforce Development Minister 
Kim Hames at the official opening 
of the new Building Technologies 
Training Facility.



C
H

A
LL

E
N

G
E

R
 I

N
S

TI
TU

TE

A
N

N
U

A
L R

E
P

O
R

T 2014

5
Our Strategic Priorities
Challenger Institute’s Strategic Plan:

• Considers our operating environment 
and role as a large public registered 
training organisation.

• Aligns with state and commonwealth 
policies and priorities.

• Actively supports the WA Government’s 
blueprint for the training system, 
Training WA, and its Aboriginal 
Workforce Development Strategy 
Training Together - Working Together.

• Is backed by good governance, quality 
and national accreditation frameworks.

• Invites staff and stakeholders to be 
involved in shaping a better future.

Our Purpose
For everyone a pathway  
to a better future

Our Values
Excellence through innovation and high 
quality outcomes.

Integrity through ethical and honest 
behaviour.

Collaboration by building positive working 
relationships.

Sustainability through environmental,  
social and economic responsibility.

Kazakh delegation at Challenger’s state-of-the-art 
Building Technologies Training Facility.

Between 35 and 40 per cent of 
Challenger Institute’s revenue is derived 
from commercial activities, including 
fee-for-service domestic training 
delivery and international on-shore and 
off-shore contracts with large global 
companies. 

Challenger provides commercial 
training and research services to nine 
countries: Chile, East Timor, Indonesia, 
Kazakhstan, Mauritius, Papua New 
Guinea, Singapore, South Africa 
and United Arab Emirates, and has  
partnering agreements with training 
institutes in China.

We are committed to good practice, 
shared values and continuous 
improvement.

We achieve our purpose through:

• The skills, knowledge, abilities and 
attitudes of staff

• Teamwork and strong relationships
• Client-focused business processes
• Excellent programs and services, 

and
• Leadership demonstrated within 

the institute, the community and our 
region.

AGENCy OVERVIEW
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Strategic Plan 2014–2016
Challenger Institute’s major 
organisational objectives are described 
in its Strategic Plan 2014-2016. The plan 
is outcomes-focused and provides an 
overarching framework for operational 
planning, performance monitoring and 
continuous improvement.

The Strategic Plan 2014-2016 has six 
strategic objectives: 

1. A skilled workforce providing industry-
driven training to meet workforce 
development needs. 

2. Flexible and contemporary 
apprenticeship and traineeship 
delivery. 

3. Individual participation in training and 
expanding the community’s access 
to relevant vocational education and 
training. 

4. Support for regional communities in 
accessing training. 

5. A strong enterprising culture 
generating commercial and 
international business. 

6. A capable and flexible training 
organisation.

Development of the strategic plan is 
assisted by an Institute-wide planning 
day that enables staff to participate and 
contribute to the overall objectives of  
the plan.

Apprentice chef Morgan Keyte from Hamilton Hill claimed first place in the 
Chaine des Rotisseurs Jeunes Commis national competition.

AGENCy OVERVIEW



C
H

A
LL

E
N

G
E

R
 I

N
S

TI
TU

TE

A
N

N
U

A
L R

E
P

O
R

T 2014

7

make up about one fifth of all apprenticeship 
training in WA and the best way to meet this 
demand for workers is through quality training. 
The largest of its kind in WA, the hi-tech 
facility is providing pre-apprenticeship and 
apprenticeship training for up to 900 students 
per year across the south metropolitan region. 
The workshops are equipped with the latest 
equipment, tools and machinery to ensure 
students develop the professional skills 
required in an industry that is undergoing 
constant transformation. 

Challenger’s oil and gas training specialist 
centre, the Australian Centre for Energy and 
Process Training (ACEPT), is the premier 
facility of its kind in the southern hemisphere, 
and is set to double its training capacity.  

Challenger Institute, the only training 
provider in Western Australia to twice 
be named Australian Large Training 
Provider of the Year, has enjoyed a 
year of considerable achievement and 
consolidation. Major investments in 
infrastructure and workforce development 
services were initiated in some areas 
and came to full fruition in others. This 
commitment to meeting the needs of 
industry and our learners has ensured 
Challenger remains at the forefront of 
vocational education training nationally.

The investments in several major campus 
redevelopments are particularly relevant 
and timely as the Western Australian 
economy continues to diversify and 
evolve, and the vocational education 
and training sector responds and adjusts 
to the priorities outlined in the State 
Government’s Future Skills WA policy. 
These developments fittingly reflect our 
primary focus on the student experience 
and their training outcomes.

The doors to Challenger’s $28.6 million 
Building Technologies Training Facility 
in Rockingham opened in February. The 
facility will serve for many years to come 
as a focal point for training in the building 
sector. Building and construction trades 

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR AND 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
It is with great pleasure that 
Challenger Institute of Technology 
presents its 2014 Annual Report.

Challenger’s $28.6 million Building 
Technologies Training Facility in Rockingham 
opened in February 2014.
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and surrounding shires. The health care 
and social assistance industry are some 
of Australia’s largest employers and there 
is significant demand in the expanding 
Peel region for these services. This state-
of-the-art development will help meet this 
demand through the delivery of training 
in nursing, aged care, children’s services, 
community services, disability services and 
education. Projections from the Department 
of Planning indicate the number of Peel 
residents over the age of 70 will increase 
from 14 per cent to 20 per cent by 2026, 
further reinforcing the need for such a 
centre and highlighting Challenger’s 
responsiveness to a changing social and 
employment landscape. 

These major developments are exciting 
and central to maintaining our focus on 
the priority training needs of the state but 
equally as impressive has been the record 
of achievement and recognition earned 
by Challenger, and its staff and students, 
throughout the year.

At the forefront was Challenger’s Quinlan’s 
Training Restaurant, which won another 
Savour Australia Restaurant and Catering 
HOSTPLUS Award for Excellence (WA) 
in the Best Restaurant in a Training 
Institute category, for the fourth time in as 
many years. Challenger students claimed 
some of the most prestigious individual 
awards available to young chefs, including 
respected international accolades and 
national awards from peak industry bodies.

A $15 million commitment by the State 
Government will further enhance 
Challenger’s, and WA’s, reputation as 
a centre for excellence for engineering 
and for oil and gas and liquefied 
natural gas processing. The significant 
expansion of ACEPT will meet a demand 
for highly skilled plant operators that 
is set to increase dramatically as new 
LNG projects come online. The new 
facilities will offer advanced diplomas 
in mechanical, electrical and structural 
engineering, nurturing the high-level 
technical skills needed to operate 
complex LNG plants.

Work on the new Peel Health and 
Community Services Training Centre 
drew to a conclusion in readiness for 
its first cohort of students in 2015. The 
$6 million centre represents a major 
training boost to the Mandurah region 

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

One of our talented commercial cookery 
students, Taylor Wood, was named WA 
School-Based Apprentice of the Year 2014 
at the prestigious WA Training Awards. Now 
completing her apprenticeship as a chef at 
Matilda Bay Restaurant, Taylor is an excellent 
example of how school-based apprentices can 
complete their Certificate of Education while 
making in-roads on a career. In floristry, three 
of the major national awards on offer in the 
industry were claimed by Challenger students 
and staff.

Our reputation on the international stage 
has continued to grow, with more students 
choosing Challenger as their international 
training destination and our international 
partnerships expanding. The number of 
on-shore international students attending 
Challenger increased by 7.4 per cent on the 
previous year, with 866 overseas learners on 
our campuses. Among the newest cohort of 
students were those studying a Certificate III 
in Light Automotive Mechanical Technology, 
the first international students to undertake 
an automotive training course at Challenger’s 
state-of-the-art Kwinana campus. 

Challenger increased its international service 
delivery and reputation through the provision 
of off-shore commercial training and research 
activity to organisations in nine countries: Chile, 
East Timor, Indonesia, Kazakhstan, Mauritius, 
Papua New Guinea, Singapore, South Africa 
and United Arab Emirates. Such partnerships 
with international institutions and private 
companies have enriched the Institute and 
added significantly to our overall capability. 

Peel Health and Community Services 
Training Centre.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Challenger lecturer Colin Wilkins (right) with 
visiting Kazakh educator Aslan Temirbayev 
at Challenger’s state-of-the-art Building 
Technologies Training Facility.

A volunteer care program in Cambodia is 
delivering help and hope.

Challenger also teamed with charity and 
volunteer organisations in Cambodia and 
India to help impoverished youngsters who 
would otherwise miss out on educational 
opportunities. In India, Challenger students 
worked with local teachers at a shelter 
operated by India Study Abroad Centre 
(ISAC), where they helped with curriculum 
development and assisted children with 
special needs. 

In Cambodia, Challenger worked on 
a number of projects with non-profit 
organisation, One-2-One Charitable Trust. 
One of these projects involved health and 
fitness students and a lecturer team training 
more than 20 Cambodian teachers in 
areas such as anatomy, strength training, 
cardio fitness and children’s nutrition. The 
Cambodian teachers, who come from a 
variety of schools, will take their training 
back to local schools. Another project 
is focused on assisting One-2-One with 
its information technology expertise and 
requirements.

Closer to home, Challenger and Curtin 
University signed an articulation agreement 
that provides seamless pathways from 
vocational education and training into 
university. The agreement enables graduates 
of Challenger’s diplomas and advanced 
diplomas to apply for entry into a variety of 
Curtin bachelor degree courses, including 
engineering, commerce, arts, education and 
science. Challenger graduates may also 
receive credit of up to one year in a three or 
four year degree at Curtin. 

The Kazakhstan partnership was a particularly 
exciting initiative forged in 2014. With a remit 
to develop and reform the training sector in 
the ninth largest country in the world, Kazakh 
company Kasipkor was enlisted to scour the 
globe in search of the right institutions to guide 
the important transformation. Challenger was 
one of just a handful of global partners, and the 
only one in Australia, enlisted to assist in the 
mission. Other international partners came from 
the United Kingdom, Germany, United States 
and Canada.

A delegation of Kazakh educators paid a two-
week visit to Challenger. The partnership 
between Challenger and Kasipkor focuses on 
improving curriculums, course delivery and 
assessment methods in the construction and 
information technology sectors, and involved 
reciprocal visits between the two countries.
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For all of our outstanding achievements 
this year, we are greatly appreciative of 
the passion and commitment of our staff, 
the talent of our students, the loyalty of our 
partners and the contribution of our Governing 
Council members. Our thanks also go to 
Dr Kim Hames, Minister for Training and 
Workforce Development, for his enthusiasm 
for the sector and his support for Challenger 
Institute of Technology throughout 2014. 
We very much look forward to a similarly 
productive relationship with Minister Hames’ 
newly appointed successor, Minister Harvey.

sustainable career development outcomes 
within the workplace. In another partnership 
with Chevron Australia, ACEPT’s Women in 
Engineering program is into its fifth year. The 
program provides women with a supportive, 
applied learning environment that includes work 
placement and access to female role models. 

Challenger continued to expand teaching and 
learning opportunities for staff and to develop 
internal innovation strategies. We grew the 
capability of our workforce by providing more 
than 16,000 hours of internal and external 
professional development. 

The Australian Quality Training 
Framework survey, completed by 1,688 
students and 149 employers, revealed 
that 93 per cent of students agreed 
that Challenger trainers had excellent 
knowledge of the subject matter being 
taught. 81 per cent of employers regarded 
the training at Challenger as an effective 
investment for their organisation. These 
excellent results demonstrate the high 
quality of our training across a breadth of 
program areas. 

In working to meet our priority to achieve 
increased numbers of Aboriginal 
students in training and employment, 
635 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
students were enrolled in 2014, an 8.3 
per cent increase on 2013. Of particular 
note, 257 Aboriginal students studied a 
Certificate III or higher level qualification, 
a 7.5 per cent increase on 2013. 

Our ongoing commitment to Aboriginal 
training was demonstrated through a 
range of courses specifically tailored 
to improving industry-specific skills, 
confidence and employment outcomes. 
A partnership between Challenger and 
the Chevron-operated Gorgon Project 
and subsidiary CB&I Kentz Joint Venture 
(CKJV) allowed for the delivery of 
construction short courses for Aboriginal 
trainees. The electrical trades assistant 
and general construction and scaffolding 
short courses focused on up-skilling 
existing employees and achieving 

In an Australian first, Challenger Institute’s oil and 
gas training facility is providing trainees with real-life 
experience in the safe management of onshore and 
offshore personnel.

Liz Harris PSM
Chief Executive Officer 
Challenger Institute of 
Technology

Paddi Creevey OAM
Chair of Governing Council 
Challenger Institute of 
Technology

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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ACHIEVEMENTS By SCHOOL
School of Applied Engineering / Oil and Gas

A glass-reinforced piping training and 
certification program was conducted at the 
Henderson engineering campus for specialist 
piping installers employed on the Gorgon 
Project. Challenger is the sole provider of this 
training in Australia.

Challenger’s VET in Schools Student of 
the year was Certificate III in Electronics 
student Luke Norman. Luke is a participant 
in the School Pathways Program, a national 
partnership between the Federal Government, 
Defence Materiel Organisation and the WA 
Department of Education. The program 
supports school-based pathways in science, 
technology, engineering and mathematics.

Prelude FLNG facility, to be stationed in 
the East Browse Basin off WA’s Kimberley 
coast. The partnership will see ACEPT 
train an expected 200 technicians working 
in the production, mechanical, instrument-
electrical and service areas. The training 
will feature a strong focus on health, safety 
and environment.

In an Australian first, ACEPT is now 
providing trainees with real-life experience 
in the safe management of onshore and 
offshore personnel. Students are now 
utilising the Vantage POB (Personnel on 
Board) system delivered by UK-based 
specialist information systems company 
Collabro and in use by oil and gas 
operators around the world. The web-
based system enables users to efficiently 
monitor and control the movements 
of personnel at offshore and onshore 
facilities. At ACEPT, the system is being 
applied to the movements of students as 
they participate in training activities.

The Challenger SMART apprenticeship 
model was expanded to include 
mechanical engineering and welding, 
in addition to the existing SMART 
apprenticeships in engineering fabrication. 
Within two years, the increasingly 
popular program has grown to involve 60 
fabrication and welding and 10 mechanical 
engineering apprentices, as well as an 
estimated 30 employers.

The confirmation of a $15 million funding 
commitment by the West Australian 
Government has set the framework for 
a significant expansion of Challenger 
Institute’s oil and gas training facility, 
the Australian Centre for Energy and 
Process Training (ACEPT). A specialist 
engineering training centre will be built at 
the Henderson site, increasing ACEPT’s 
capacity to meet the future workforce 
development needs of the Australian LNG 
industry through the training of electrical 
and instrumentation control engineers and 
engineering technicians. The new centre 
is expected to double ACEPT’s annual 
training capacity to 1,800 students. It will 
support the delivery of a wider range of 
qualifications focused on developing the 
high level technical skills required for 
the operation and maintenance of LNG 
plants, including advanced diplomas 
in mechanical, electrical and structural 
engineering.

Shell and Challenger’s multi-year 
partnership to develop customised training 
for the energy giant’s Prelude FLNG 
facility marked a major milestone, with a 
group of Prelude technicians completing 
the inaugural Shell Prelude Foundation 
Training program. The world-first FLNG 
training was the culmination of Shell and 
Challenger jointly developing programs 
that are rolled out as Shell continues the 
construction and commissioning of the 

ACHIEVEMENTS BY SCHOOL

The Challenger SMART apprenticeships model.
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for the provision of electrical training 
panels that give students unrivalled access 
to simulated domestic or commercial 
electrical systems they can work on safely, 
quickly and with diagnostic feedback. 

The facility was funded by the State 
Government, with $17 million of this 
funding coming from the National 
Agreement for Skills and Workforce 
Development.

The close relationship between Challenger 
and the Chevron-operated Gorgon Project 
and subsidiary CB&I Kentz Joint Venture 
(CKJV) was further reinforced through 
the delivery of construction short courses 
for Aboriginal trainees. The electrical 
trades assistant and general construction 
and scaffolding short courses provide 
the trainees with skills, qualifications 
and improved employment and career 
development opportunities. 

A new course introduced at the state-
of-the-art automotive training campus in 
Kwinana, the Certificate I in Automotive 
Vocational Preparation, is specifically 
tailored as an entry-level course that 
will introduce students to the range of 
automotive specialisations available in the 
industry, including light and heavy vehicle 
maintenance.  

and the utilities building that houses 
plumbing and gas fitting. Students benefit 
from state-of-the-art workshops, specialised 
learning rooms for electrical trades, 
classrooms and computer-based  
training rooms.

The courses offered at the new facility have 
a focus on sustainability principles, including 
renewable energy, waste management and 
water management.

As part of the project, existing training 
blocks at the Rockingham campus were 
extensively refitted to ensure the best 
possible facilities were available for electrical 
and data communications training. A further 
investment of almost $1 million was made 

Challenger Institute officially opened 
its $28.6 million Building Technologies 
Training Facility in Rockingham, 
representing a major step forward for the 
Western Australian construction industry. 
The new building and construction 
training facility is the largest in WA and 
is well positioned to meet the state’s 
growing demand for skilled workers. 
It will provide pre-apprenticeship and 
apprenticeship training for up to 900 
students each year.

The building comprises three major 
components: timber technology, including 
carpentry, joinery and machining; mortar 
trades, including plastering, bricklaying, 
tiling and wall and ceiling lining; 

(L-R) Lecturer Travis Jenkins with automotive students Tian Hang 
from China and Christopher Tanuwijaya from Indonesia.

ACHIEVEMENTS BY SCHOOL

School of Building and Automotive Technology
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ACHIEVEMENTS BY SCHOOL

a dedicated area, where students will be able 
to interact with babies and young children. 
A large multipurpose area can be used for 
functions, first aid training, or as two separate 
classroom spaces.

Following the success of the corresponding 
certificate III course the previous year, a new 
Certificate IV in Sterilisation Services course 
was rolled out in 2014. The qualification 
covers workers who operate in a senior 
specialist role in a sterilising service or 
department. The Murdoch campus will also 
become home to a simulation sterilisation 
laboratory in 2015, following the advancement 
this year of plans to develop and house the 
unit in a science laboratory on the campus.

Certificate III in Hairdressing graduate 
Claudia Cole won Challenger Institute’s 
prestigious Student of the year Award. 
The young hairdresser was also named 
Apprentice of the Year during Challenger’s 
annual Student Awards Ceremony.

School of Foundation  
and Cultural Studies 
In a national first, a pilot Challenger Institute 
Certificate IV in Frontline Management 
(Aboriginal Leadership) was introduced to 
provide participants with the opportunity to 
learn a range of management strategies that 
can be implemented across all industries. 
Catering to the demands of full-time workers, 
the course is delivered over a six month 
period, and includes three one-week face-
to-face blocks and an online component. 
Following the success of this year’s pilot 

School of Community 
Services, Health, Sport  
and Lifestyle 
The new Peel Health and Community 
Services Training Centre at the Mandurah 
campus neared completion in readiness 
for first semester classes in 2015. The 
$6 million centre will deliver industry-
supported training for up to 200 students 
in nursing, aged care, children’s services, 
community services, disability services and 
education. The centre will help meet the 
Peel region’s growing demand for skilled 
health and community services workers. 

The new centre will include a simulated 
ward for aged care and nursing training, 
complete with bathroom, sterilisation and 
patient transfer areas. Children’s services 
and education support training will utilise 

School of Business and 
Information Technology
Challenger Institute was one of just a handful 
of global partners enlisted by fast-growing 
central Asian nation Kazakhstan to assist in 
transforming that country’s redevelopment of 
its vocational education system. Information 
technology was at the forefront of their 
planning process, and Challenger’s IT was 
a focal point of a two-week study tour by 
a delegation from Kazakhstan company 
Kasipkor. The delegation worked closely 
with the IT team, focusing on improving 
curriculums, course delivery and assessment 
methods in the information technology sectors.

Diploma of Management student Marinda 
Saunders received the coveted Trainee of the 
Year Award at Challenger’s Student Awards 
Ceremony.

Kim Edney winner  
of the Aboriginal 
Student of the year 
Award at Challenger’s 
2014 Student Awards 
Ceremony.

Marinda Saunders 
winner of the Trainee 
of the year Award at 
Challenger’s 2014 
Student Awards 
Ceremony.
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peak industry organisation representing 
professional chefs, apprentices and 
culinary students, Challenger’s Brody 
young-Steedman was named Second year 
Apprentice of the year. Challenger cookery 
lecturer Kim Stanton was selected as head 
of judges at the 2014 WorldSkills Australia 
National Competition in Perth.

Challenger’s tourism, events and hospitality 
students and lecturers were selected 
for the third year in a row to participate 
as volunteers in the highest profile food 
and wine festival in the state, the annual 
Margaret River Gourmet Escape.

School of Maritime Studies 
Challenger Institute’s Australian Centre for 
Applied Aquaculture Research (ACAAR) 
has been at the forefront of major restocking 
projects, making headlines and earning 
recognition for a series of major initiatives 
throughout 2014.

A marathon scientific research project 
has successfully rejuvenated stocks of a 
fishermen’s favourite, the black bream, in  
the Blackwood River. Challenger, working 
closely with Murdoch University, the Fisheries 
Research and Development Corporation 
and the West Australian Fish Foundation, 
embarked on the mission to restore depleted 
stocks of the iconic species in 1999. Fifteen 
years later, evidence has emerged that the 
signature commercial fish of the Blackwood 
River, in Western Australia’s south west, is 
breeding in sufficient numbers for the  
species to have recovered.

program, in which 19 students graduated, the 
course is being expanded to run in 2015. 

In the Peel region, a new course is providing 
access to the International Language Testing 
System (IELTS) qualification. The preparation 
course aims to help people improve their 
English and attain sufficient language 
proficiency to study and work in Western 
Australia as well as meeting permanent 
residency requirements.

School of Hospitality  
and Tourism 
Challenger Institute’s Quinlan’s Training 
Restaurant and its students continued to collect 
awards and industry recognition throughout  
the year. 

Quinlan’s, in Beaconsfield, won its fourth 
consecutive Savour Australia Restaurant and 
Catering HOSTPLUS Award for Excellence 
(WA), reasserting their dominance in the Best 
Restaurant in a Training Institute category. The 
training restaurant has claimed the award each 
year since its induction. 

Individual honours were plentiful, with 
commercial cookery students in the limelight. 
Certificate III in Commercial Cookery student 
Morgan Keyte winning the Wusthof Award for 
Kitchen Excellence at the 2014 Jeunes Chefs 
Rôtisseurs International Competition in South 
Africa. Taylor Wood, based at Challenger’s 
Peel campus, was named Western Australian 
School-Based Apprentice of the Year 2014. In 
the Apprentice of the year Awards presented 
by the Australian Culinary Federation, the 

ACAAR has also been at the forefront 
of restocking projects that have drawn 
international acclaim, including western 
school prawns in Perth rivers and mulloway 
along the WA coast. The development by 
ACAAR of ground-breaking systems to 
culture the river prawn enabled large-scale 
fortnightly releases to become a reality. 
Up to a million prawns were released into 
the Swan River, providing a massive boost 
to the prospects of bringing prawning, an 
iconic summertime pursuit, back to Perth’s 
arterial waterways.

ACAAR continued to work with Marine 
Produce Australia, who contracted 
Challenger to breed, supply and transport 
one million juvenile barramundi per year  
to the Kimberley-based company.  
The 2,700 kilometre 
journey from Fremantle 
to Derby represents 
possibly the longest 
such transportation 
achievement in the 
world for this delicate 
cargo.

ACHIEVEMENTS BY SCHOOL

ACAAR director Greg Jenkins with a live  
example of the black bream that have repopulated 
the Blackwood River.
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Each year, around the globe, billions of 
dollars are spent by governments and 
industry to control tiny aquatic organisms 
that accumulate on aquatic surfaces and 
structures. A new Challenger course, 
delivered in partnership with the Department 
of Fisheries, is tackling this important issue 
for the shipping and fisheries industries. 
The Certificate IV in Biofouling Inspection 
is believed to be a world-first and has been 
specifically designed to fill an industry gap in 
biofouling services across Australia. 

Challenger’s unique Maritime Youth Program 
continued to provide an educational lifeline 
to struggling high school-age students. The 
six-week course enables students identified 
by the Education Department’s Participation 
Unit to attain a Certificate I in Fishing 
Operations and a Recreational Skippers 
Ticket and opens the door to further study. 

School of Science and  
the Environment 
Challenger Institute was awarded a grant by 
the Water Corporation to conduct a research 
project comparing the efficiency of domestic 
irrigation systems. As part of the research, 
moisture sensors are deployed to determine 
the effectiveness of a range of sprinklers, 
drip lines and other watering systems. The 
project is conducted by the horticulture 
training area and has led to the creation 
of a modern research area at the Murdoch 
campus, which is expected to attract national 
attention within the industry. 

Three products of Challenger’s floristry 
training have individually claimed the biggest 
Australian prizes in the industry. Annita 
Bokobli, Bettina Van Dijk and Zoe Knox were 
recently awarded the Interflora Australia 
Cup, Smithers Oasis Designz Cup and 
Wildflowers Australia’s National Category 
One prize respectively. For Annita, a lecturer 
at Challenger for seven years and former 
student, the award was the culmination 
of years of perfecting her craft, while Zoe 
commended the training delivery flexibility that 
enabled her to complete her training while 
based in her hometown of Albany. 

International Relations
Challenger Institute was a finalist in the 
2014 WA Training Awards International 
Training Provider of the year category. The 
Pastoral Care program for our international 
students was also a finalist in the Council 
for International Students Western Australia 
International Education Provider of the  
year Award.

Challenger’s world class automotive training 
was offered to international students for 
the first time. Thirteen students from nine 
countries enrolled in the Certificate III in Light 
Automotive Mechanical Technology course. 

Faye Hooper was named as the Institute’s 
International Student of the year and with 
Challenger’s support was the sole Western 
Australian winner of an International Education 
Association bursary covering expenses for her 
to attend a conference in Adelaide.

A passion born in the wildlife parks of Botswana 
has led to a life focused on the environment for 
Challenger Institute’s International Student of the 
Year, Faye Hooper.

International Relation’s international 
student mentor program underwent a 
considerable revamp as it prepares to enter 
its tenth year. New mentors were recruited 
in July and November and, as well as 
mentoring fellow international students, 
they also assisted with events such as 
orientation and the international student 
graduation.

In September, Challenger was successful 
in receiving federal government funding 
for 80 local students to undertake global 
mobility programs in India and Cambodia 
in 2015. These programs continue to be 
sought after by students and have had a 
profound effect on previous participants in 
terms of their cross-cultural understanding 
and experience and their career goals for 
the future.

ACHIEVEMENTS BY SCHOOL
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Enabling Legislation
Challenger Institute of Technology 
was established as a Statutory 
Authority in 1996 under section  
35 of the Vocational Education and 
Training Act 1996.

Responsible Minister
The Hon. Dr Kim Hames MLA, 
Minister for Training and Workforce 
Development and Corrective 
Services.

The Hon. Liza Harvey MLA,  
Minister for Police; Road 
Safety; Training and Workforce 
Development; Women’s Interests

OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
Campus locations
Challenger Institute has 10 campuses, and four community-based training sites, 
in Perth’s south-west metropolitan corridor and the Peel region.
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OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

Organisational chart
Challenger Institute of Technology is a statutory authority delivering vocational education and training. 

Established in 1996 under Section 35 of the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996, the Institute is a body corporate with functions 
conferred by the Minister for Training and Workforce Development and consists of a Governing Council, staff and enrolled students. 

The Accountable Authority for Challenger Institute of Technology is the Governing Council. The Chief Executive Officer is supported by an 
executive comprising the general managers of the organisation’s four directorates. The largest of the directorates is Training Services, the 
institute’s training delivery arm. Business Services, and Client Services and Communications, provide corporate and client support, with 
Organisational Learning and Development responsible for staff learning and development, quality and continuous improvement functions.
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Left to right: Terry Durant, General Manager Client Services and Communications; Liz Harris, Chief Executive 
Officer; Julia Burns, General Manager Organisational Learning and Development; Michael Juliff, General Manager 
Business Services; Melanie Sorensen, General Manager Training Services.

Executive Team
DIRECTORATES

Business Services
The Business Services directorate is 
led by general manager Michael Juliff 
and encompasses finance (including 
assets and supply); information and 
communication technologies; people 
and safety; records management; and 
risk management. The directorate 
provides the relevant tools, advice 
and frameworks to ensure Challenger 
Institute delivers high quality business 
strategy and leadership.

Client Services and 
Communications
The Client Services and 
Communications directorate is led 
by general manager Terry Durant 
and comprises marketing and public 
relations; student services and 
admissions; facilities and infrastructure; 
and international relations. Its aim is to 
support the Institute through innovative 
services and a strategic client focus.

Training Services
The Training Services directorate led by  
general manager Melanie Sorensen 
comprises seven training divisions, as well 
as short course and business development 
support; apprenticeship and traineeship 
support; school age initiatives; and an 
applied research centre for the aquaculture 
industry. It works closely with government, 
industry and community partners to provide 
customised workforce development and 
relevant training services. 

Organisational Learning  
and Development
Led by general manager Julia Burns, 
the Organisational Learning and 
Development directorate consists of 
areas that provide advice, support and 
assistance to staff across Challenger: 
learning and development; teaching 
and learning services; learning resource 
centres; planning and development; and 
planning and data systems.

OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
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and services. Having served 
and chaired numerous Boards 
and committees during her 
long and varied career, Paddi 
currently remains a member 
of various bodies including the 
Chair of Regional Development 
Australia Peel and the Peel 
Harvey Catchment.

Mike Deeks  
(deputy chair)
Appointed 2006

Commodore 
Deeks served for 
32 years in the 
Royal Australian 
Navy, retiring in 
2005. His naval career included 
four major sea commands and 
culminated in the role as the 
Commander of the Australian 
Submarine Force and Senior 
Defence Officer in WA.  

He has senior executive 
experience in a number of 
leading Defence Industry 
companies. 

Paddi Creevey  
OAM (chair)
Appointed 2002

Paddi Creevey, 
was appointed 
Chair of the 
Governing 
Council of 
Challenger Institute of 
Technology in February 2002.  
She was awarded the Order of 
Australia Medal in 2010 for her 
services to the community and 
Local Government, and was 
inducted into the inaugural WA 
Women’s Hall of Fame in 2011.

Paddi has proudly served for  
20 years in local government 
and for a period of eight years 
she was Mayor of the City of 
Mandurah, retiring from the role 
in October 2013.

Paddi has an extensive 
background in social and 
community health work, 
being instrumental in the 
development of a wide range 
of community organisations 

Governing Council
Each member of the Governing Council is appointed by the Minister for Training and Workforce 
Development to serve for a period of up to three years and is eligible for re-appointment. Members are 
appointed for their experience and expertise in education and training or industry and community affairs, 
and for their ability to contribute to the strategic direction of the Institute.

Kaye Butler
Appointed 2007

Ms Butler 
is General 
Manager Human 
Resources for 
the Australasian 
Strategic 
Business Unit of Chevron 
Australia. Ms Butler has worked 
in the resources industry for 
most of the past 22 years and 
has a strong background in 
organisational psychology and 
human resource management. 

She has been involved in 
projects on people development 
and organisational improvement 
across a number of countries, 
covering a broad range of 
issues. Ms Butler also holds a 
board position with the EON 
Foundation.

He was a consultant to the WA 
Government for the development 
of Defence Industry in WA and a 
key driver behind the expansion 
of the Australian Marine 
Complex to support the Defence 
and Marine Industries in WA.

In addition to his role as a 
Director at Pilbara Ports, he 
is Chair of Stepping Stones 
Child Development Centre and 
was previously a member of 
the WA State Training Board; 
and Director at Dampier 
Port Authority.  He is a past 
president and current committee 
member of the Submarine 
Institute of Australia.

He was awarded the 
Conspicuous Service Cross 
in the 2005 Queen’s Birthday 
Honours List for his “superior 
leadership, consummate 
management skills and a total 
commitment to the submarine 
service.” Other awards include 
the Australian Service Medal 
with Special Operations clasp.

OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
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Stephen Cain 
Appointed 2006

Mr Cain is chief 
executive officer 
of the City of 
Cockburn. Over 
the past 20 years 
he has held 
senior management positions 
in the private and government 
sectors. He served for 35 years 
as an officer in the Australian 
Army (Regular and Reserve 
Forces) and is a graduate of 
the Royal Military College, 
Duntroon.

He continues to serve in the 
Reserve Forces and holds the 
rank of Brigadier. Mr Cain is a 
fellow of the Chartered Institute 
of Transport and Logistics 
and member of the Australian 
Defence Forces Trust 
(Governance Committee.

OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

Helen Cattalini 
OAM
Appointed 2003

Ms Cattalini 
is a former 
Commissioner 
of Multicultural 
and Ethnic Affairs 
with the Western Australian 
Government. She was awarded 
a Medal of the Order of 
Australia in 1998 for services to 
the community.

Since 1987, she has been 
a director of Helen Cattalini 
Consultancy Services, 
which specialises in social 
research and policy and 
program development in the 
government, local government 
and community sectors.

Liz Harris  
PSM
Appointed 2007

As CEO of the 
Challenger 
Institute of 
Technology, 
Liz Harris is 
responsible for leading Western 
Australia’s most diverse 
provider of vocational education 
and training. Liz brings to the 
role a breadth of experience, 
having worked in both the 
training and university sectors 
and in the international, national 
and state vocational education 
sectors.  Liz has worked 
internationally in Japan, Fiji and 
Sri Lanka for extended periods 
of time, and the Institute now 
works internationally in 13 
different countries including 
Chile, East Timor, India, 
Indonesia, Mauritius, Papua 
New Guinea, Singapore, South 
Africa, Sri Lanka, United Arab 
Emirates, Kazakhstan, China 
and Cambodia.

Liz was a WA Telstra Business 
Women’s Award winner in 
2009 and won a Public Service 
Medal Award (PSM) in 2014 
for outstanding public service.  
She is an accomplished 

business and community leader 
with a professional interest in 
learning organisations and the 
development of each individual’s 
full capabilities and potential 
within the workplace.

Liz has lead Challenger to win 
many awards, among them, two  
Western Australian Premier’s 
Awards, the  Western Australian 
Large Training Provider of the 
year, and most recently, the 
2012 Australian  Large Training 
Provider of the year. Liz is a 
director on the Australian Institute 
of Management Board and a 
former member of the Western 
Australian Training Accreditation 
Board and the Murdoch 
University Senate.

Liz holds a Bachelor of Arts 
degree in Literature, post-
graduate qualifications in 
Language Studies and Adult 
and Tertiary Education, and a 
Masters Degree in Education with 
a research focus on developing 
learning organisations.
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David Holland
Appointed 2003

Mr Holland 
is principal 
strategist and 
director of 
Brighthouse 
urban designers 
and tourism development 
consultants. He is a specialist 
in environmentally sustainable 
accommodation developments 
for the tourism, resource and 
retirement sectors.

He has considerable experience 
in tourism operations and has 
served as chairman of the Peel 
Region Tourism Association, 
president of the Caravan Industry 
Australia (WA), and as a member 
of the WA Hospitality and Tourism 
Industry Training Council. Mr 
Holland is a former chairman 
of judges for the WA Tourism 
Awards. 

Harry Kleyn
Appointed 2010

Mr Kleyn has 
an extensive 
background 
in business 
development and 
entrepreneurship 
initially as a builder, then as 
founding partner of Community 
Newspapers and until 2010 
founder and CEO of WA 
Business News. 

Outside his main interests in 
publishing and building, Mr 
Kleyn has also served for 
many years on community 
and business organisations 
including board member of the 
Small Business Development 
Corporation, president of the 
WA Chamber of Commerce and 
Industry, board member of the 
John Calvin School Association, 
board member of the Good 
Samaritan Industries and board 
member The Association for the 
Blind Of WA.

Tina Thomas
Appointed 2012

Ms Thomas is 
a professional 
company director 
with a career 
spanning more 
than 20 years 
in the oil and gas industry. 
Her business experience has 
embraced a wide range of 
leadership roles, including 
human resources; merger 
and acquisitions; corporate 
affairs; indigenous affairs; 
health; safety and environment; 
security and emergency 
management and sustainability. 
Tina is also on the Board of 
Activ Foundation.

Kevin Woods
Appointed 2009

Mr Woods is 
the founder 
and Managing 
Director of 
Global Higher 
Education and 
YesTeach Me (Australia). He has 
extensive senior management 
experience in post secondary 
and tertiary education institutions, 
including as chief executive 
officer of the Western Australian 
Department of TAFE, chief 
executive officer of The Australian 
Institute of University Studies, 
chief executive officer of the 
Alexander Education Group 
and Pro Vice Chancellor at 
Murdoch University. Other non-
education sector chief executive 
positions held include Phillips Fox 
Lawyers of Melbourne and the 
City of Camberwell and the City 
Boroondara Melbourne.

He has served on the governing 
boards of several corporate 
and public sector organisations, 
including the Western Australian 
Higher Education Council, 
the Western Australian State 
Employment and Skills 
Development Authority, Murdoch 
Institute, MS Biotechnology and 
Uni Super.
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Administered Legislation
The Minister for Training and Workforce Development administers the 
Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 (the Act).

Other Key Legislation Impacting  
on Activities
Other key legislation impacting on Challenger Institute of Technology’s 
activities and with which the institute complies are the following:

•	 Auditor	General	Act	2006;
•	 Disability	Services	Act	1993;
•	 Corruption	and	Crime	Commission	Act	2003;
•	 Education	Service	Providers	(Full	Fee	Overseas	Students)	

Registration	Act	1991;
•	 Equal	Opportunity	Act	1984;
•	 Financial	Management	Act	2006;
•	 Freedom	of	Information	Act	1992;
•	 Industrial	Relations	Act	1979;
•	 Minimum	Conditions	of	Employment	Act	1993;
•	 Occupational	Safety	and	Health	Act	1984;
•	 Public	Sector	Management	Act	1994;
•	 Salaries	and	Allowances	Act	1975;
•	 School	Education	Act	1999;
•	 State	Records	Act	2000;
•	 State	Supply	Commission	Act	1991;
•	 Workers	Compensation	and	Injury	Management	Act	1981;	and
•	 Working	with	Children	(Criminal	Record	Checking)	Act	2004

OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
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Outcome Based Management Framework
Government goals are supported at agency level by specific desired outcomes. Agencies deliver 
services to achieve these outcomes, which ultimately contribute to meeting the higher level 
government goals. The following illustrates the relationship between Challenger’s outcomes and 
the most appropriate government goal.

GOVERNMENT GOAL DESIRED OUTCOME CHALLENGER (AGENCy LEVEL) 
SERVICES

Outcomes Based Service Delivery

Greater focus on achieving results 
in key service delivery areas for the 
benefit of all West Australians. 

Provision of education and training 
services to meet community and 
industry training needs.

Training programs for nationally 
recognised qualifications.

Apprenticeship and traineeship training.

Entry and bridging courses leading into 
mainstream courses.

Commercial training – customised 
training and short courses.

Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework
There was no change to Challenger’s Outcome Based Management Framework in 2014.

Shared responsibilities with other agencies
Challenger receives its annual funding allocation from the State Government through a resource 
agreement (Delivery and Performance Agreement) with the Department of Training and Workforce 
Development. The Institute reports to the Department for outcomes under that agreement.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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Context
As signaled in the 2013 Annual Report, 
2014 saw significant changes in the 
vocational education and training sector 
and in Challenger Institute’s operating 
environment. The introduction of the 
State Government’s Future Skills policy 
and new priorities for publicly subsidised 
training has resulted in reduced training 
hours. Other factors influencing demand 
for Challenger courses during the year 
included subdued confidence in the 
economy and softening of the labour 
market in various industries and the 
catchment area serviced by the Institute.

With these developments and against 
a record level of service provision in 
2013, Challenger Institute of Technology 
registered a decrease in the total number 
of training hours it delivered in 2014, 
departing from a trend which saw the 
Institute steadily grow its training output 
over an extended period prior to 2014.

In 2014 Challenger responded by building 
its partnerships with industry and focusing 
on sectors aligned to state priorities, 
including oil and gas, maritime and 
health. The Institute identified and made 
efficiencies in its business and continued 

AGENCy PERFORMANCE

its strategy of growing its commercial and 
international fee-for-service programs. 
Notable successes included the 
Institute’s commercial partnership with 
Shell Australia which services the skill 
needs of the Prelude FLNG project.

Key investments were made in 
information technology, buildings and 
equipment to maintain Challenger’s 
strong reputation for excellence, 
innovation and industry relevance.

Enhancements were also made to the 
Institute’s organisational learning and 
development program, with planning and 
professional development focused on 
continuous improvement and providing 
staff with the skills and support required 
to innovate and meet the requirements of 
a changed operating environment.

Report on Operations
Challenger’s purpose
For	everyone	a	pathway	to	a	better	future

(L-R) Challenger lecturer Dale Hewitt with FLNG course 
participants Coralee Alexander and Sean Faherty.
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Department of Training and Workforce 
Development. In the context of reduced 
government purchasing through the DPA, 
2014 saw a decrease of 754,620 or 15 per 
cent in profile training hours in comparison 
to 2013. The Institute fell short of its initial 
planned profile target for the year by 8.6 per 
cent.

A combination of factors influenced this 
result including introduction of the Western 
Australian Government’s Future Skills 
policy and a revised student fees structure; 
the slowdown in resources led activity; and 
subdued consumer confidence.

While there was an overall contraction in 
profile delivery, business areas which met 
or exceeded targets, were:

Training effort
In 2014 Challenger Institute delivered a total 
of 6,176,573 training hours (SCH), a decrease 
of 8.9 per cent or 605,773 less training hours 
(SCH) compared to 2013. 

Total training hours provided in 2014 translated 
to a total of 17,519 students, with 24,418 
course enrolments recorded for the year.

Challenger Institute delivers profile and non-
profile funded training.
PROFILE
Profile funded training accounts for a larger 
proportion of all training delivered by the 
Institute. In 2014, Challenger provided 
4,277,012 profile training hours which were 
publicly subsidised under its Delivery and 
Performance Agreement (DPA) with the 

AGENCy  PERFORMANCE

• Information technology
• Oil and gas processing
• Metal and engineering trades
• Applied engineering
• Primary industries
• Community services
• Access and participation.

Achieved targets included enrolments in 
information technology, oil and gas and applied 
engineering, horticulture, and community 
services qualifications, which were on the 
State’s 2014 Priority Industry Qualifications 
List (PIQL). Under the Future Skills policy, 
PIQL qualifications are skill areas which 
the Department of Training and Workforce 
Development has identified as in demand and 
of strategic importance to the State.

Challenger Institute of Technology 
AVETMISS Collection

Challenger Institute of Technology 
AVETMISS Collection
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NON-PROFILE
Non-profile funded (fee-for-service) 
training accounts for a growing proportion 
of all training delivered. Consistent with 
the Institute’s strategy of increasing 
its revenue from commercial sources, 
1,899,561 fee-for-service training hours 
were delivered in 2014, representing 30.7 
per cent of total training effort, up from 
25.8 per cent in 2013.

Fee-for-service activities included 
commercial short courses for single 
subscriber and enterprise clients, 
workforce development programs for 
corporate clients, onshore international 
student enrolments, offshore international 
contracts and research programs.

A skilled workforce providing  
industry driven training to meet 
workforce development needs
In accordance with state and national 
policies aimed at developing a modern, 
highly skilled and flexible workforce, 
Challenger Institute focuses on strategies 
to better meet workforce development 
needs, including:

• Increasing training for higher level 
qualifications and pathways into higher 
education, and

• Increasing the amount of training 
delivered in the workplace.

Challenger Institute administers the 
Australian Quality Training Framework 
(AQTF) Learner and Employer Surveys each 
year to assess the extent to which students 
are engaging in activities likely to promote 
high-quality skills outcomes. Participation in 
the survey program is a requirement for all 
registered training organisations under the 
AQTF.

A total of 1,688 survey responses were 
completed by Challenger students and 149 
employers across a range of industry areas 
and demographics in 2014.

HIGHLIGHTS:
• 94.8 per cent of students agreed that they 

developed the skills expected from their 
training.

• 93.2 per cent of students developed the 
knowledge expected from their training.

• 92.7 per cent of students reported trainers 
had an excellent knowledge of the subject 
content.

• 90.1 per cent of employers said Challenger 
trainers were effective in their teaching.

• 92 per cent of students and 88.2 per 
cent of employers agreed Challenger 
gave appropriate recognition of existing 
knowledge and skills.

• 92.8 per cent of employers reported 
training resources and equipment were in 
good condition.

• 87.2 per cent of students and 89.4 per 
cent of employers agreed they would 
recommend the training to others.

AGENCy  PERFORMANCE

Workforce development
Since 2007 Challenger Institute has 
successfully implemented a range of change 
management and organisational development 
strategies to build its capacity to deliver 
sophisticated workforce development services 
in the areas of:

• Higher level qualifications
• Apprenticeships and traineeships
• Other skills in demand, and
• Workplace training services.

HIGHER LEVEL QUALIFICATIONS
Increasing the proportion of workers with 
higher level qualifications is a state and 
national vocational education and training 
(VET) priority.

Challenger has expanded the flexibility, range 
and depth of qualifications it offers to meet 
this requirement. Opportunities for Challenger 
graduates to progress to bachelor degree 
programs have also been increased through 
a range of formal articulation and pathway 
agreements with universities, especially 
Murdoch and Curtin Universities.

In 2014 there were 6,190 course enrolments 
in certificate IV, diploma and advanced 
diploma levels, compared with 6,771 the 
previous year, an 8.5 per cent decrease. 
Availability of new income contingent loans 
for tuition fees in diploma and above courses 
through VET FEE-HELP has partially offset 
the initial impact on demand of a reduction in 
public funding and increased student fees.
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HIGHLIGHTS:
• First student intake into new Certificate IV 

in Sterilisation Services.
• Four areas have improved their  

diploma/advanced diploma enrolments 
since 2013:

 –  Health, 338 in 2014 up from 265 in 2013.
 –  Community Services, 215 in 2014 up 

from 175 in 2013.
 –  Marine Operations & Logistics, 354 in 

2014 up from 197 in 2013.
 –  Applied Engineering and ACEPT, 24 in 

2014 up from 9 in 2013.

Apprenticeships and traineeships
Challenger Institute recorded 3,002 
apprentices and trainees in 2014, a 
decrease of 352 students or 11.7 per cent.

The downward movement in apprenticeship 
and traineeship numbers from a record 
level of 3,609 students in 2008 has 
continued since the global financial crisis. 
Removal of Government funded employer 
incentives for new entrants since 2013 
appears to be a factor in the more recent 
decline, although interest free trade 
support loans for apprenticeships and 
traineeships are now available, uptake 
has been relatively low. Other factors 
affecting employment based training 
are business sector concern about the 

economic outlook amid volatile commodity 
prices and lackluster consumer sentiment. 
The reduction in apprenticeships and 
traineeships is consistent with the decrease 
at State level which was in the order of 
12.5 per cent according to WA Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry.

HIGHLIGHTS:
• Apprenticeship and traineeship targets 

were exceeded in:
 – Oil and gas processing
 – Hospitality and tourism.
• Challenger SMART apprenticeship 

program expanded to include mechanical 
engineering and welding.

Challenger Institute of Technology 
AVETMISS Collection

Challenger Institute of Technology 
AVETMISS Collection
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Workplace based training services
In line with the State Government’s policy 
goals for vocational education and training, 
Challenger Institute places a high priority on 
increasing workplace training. 

Challenger Institute provided 2,109,671 
hours of workplace based training in 2014. 
With the State economy transitioning from 
high levels of activity during the construction 
phase of major resource projects, to the 
less labour intensive production phase, the 
institute’s delivery of workplace services 
slowed and recorded a decrease of 15 per 
cent for the year.

HIGHLIGHTS:
• Company and site specific workforce 

development programs provided in 
conjunction with major employers, 
including Alcoa, Australian Submarine 
Corporation, BHP Billiton, CKJV 
contractors to Gorgon project, 
Department of Environment, 
Department of Fisheries, Department 
of Health, Department of Housing, 
Department of Immigration, Department 
of Local Government, Mount Hospital, 
Nyoongar Patrol, Peel Health Campus, 
Shell Australia, State Forensic 
Mental Health Services, St Patrick’s 
Community Support Centre, Rio Tinto 
and Woodside needs updating.

Challenger Institute of Technology 
AVETMISS Collection

• 94.6 per cent of employers surveyed 
agreed the training provided by 
Challenger focused on relevant skills.

• 92.5 per cent of employers reported that 
Challenger trainers were effective in 
their teaching.

• 90.9 per cent of employers surveyed 
agreed the training helped employees 
identify how to build on their current 
skills and knowledge.

AGENCy  PERFORMANCE

Antonietta Johnson completed a Diploma of Nursing at Challenger 
Institute in 2013, and her high work ethic and performance led her to 
gain a much deserved graduate placement in a local hospital.
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Expanding the community’s 
access to vocational education 
and training and appropriate 
support services
STUDENTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS

Challenger Institute provides specialised 
access and participation programs 
and strategies to help disadvantaged 
clients achieve training and employment 
outcomes.

In 2014 Challenger Institute’s Aboriginal 
programs and access and participation 
areas provided innovative training and 
employment programs to boost student 
retention, completion and progression into 
higher levels of study and employment. 
A major focus was the provision of 
customised bridging courses to meet the 
needs of target groups, such as youth 
at risk, people with disabilities, women 
returning to the workforce, adults with 
literacy and numeracy needs, and people 
needing to learn English as a second 
language.

The number of students who identified 
as of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
descent at enrolment increased by 8 per 
cent in 2014. The number of students 
identifying a disability decreased by 158 
students, while the number of students 
reporting a non-English speaking 
background increased by 166 students or 
10.5 per cent.

In a national first, a pilot Challenger Institute 
Certificate IV in Frontline Management 
(Aboriginal Leadership) was introduced to 
provide participants with the opportunity to 
learn a range of management strategies that 
can be implemented across all industries. 
Catering to the demands of full-time workers, 
the course is delivered over a six month 
period, and includes three one-week face-
to-face blocks and an online component. 
Following the success of this year’s pilot 
program, in which 19 students graduated, 
the course is being expanded to run in 2015.
HIGHLIGHTS:
• 91.6 per cent of surveyed students  

agreed that Challenger staff respected  
their background and needs.

• 86 per cent of students agreed Challenger  
had a range of services to support learners.

• 6 per cent increase in completion rate for 
students in foundation Aboriginal programs.

• 257 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders 
enrolled in a Certificate III or above and 
increase of 18 students in comparison  
to 2013.

• 19 Aboriginal students completed the pilot 
Certificate IV in Frontline Management – 
Aboriginal Leadership program.

• 13 Aboriginal students completed entry 
level warehousing skills course preparing 
for employment with CKJV, contractor to the 
Gorgon project.

• 12 Aboriginal students completed Certificate II 
Hospitality course preparing for employment 
with CKJV, contractor to the Gorgon project.

Challenger Institute of Technology 
AVETMISS Collection

AGENCy  PERFORMANCE
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HIGHLIGHTS:
• In partnership with Gascoyne Asset 

Maintenance, Challenger ran a program 
for indigenous youth in Carnarvon.  
12 students graduated with Certificate II 
in Retail, Makeup and Skincare.

• In partnership with City of Kwinana and 
the Chamber of Industry and Commerce, 
Urban Gaining Access to Training and 
Employment (Urban GATE) program 
launched to assist disengaged young 
people transition into mainstream 
education and training.

• Piloted a Certificate II in Hairdressing  
pre-apprenticeship VET in schools 
program.

Regional
Challenger Institute is committed to 
improving access to training for regional 
communities in line with a State Government 
priority.

Following consecutive years of growth from 
2011 – 2012, demand for course enrolments 
in the Peel region began to soften in 2013 
and actually contracted in 2014. A total of 
2,431 course enrolments was recorded in 
the Peel in 2014 compared to 3,403 the 
previous year, a decrease of 28 per cent. 
Similarly total training hours were down by 
33 per cent for the year.

Challenger Institute of Technology 
AVETMISS Collection

Higher student fees for publicly funded 
courses are likely to have particularly 
affected decisions of prospective students 
in the Peel region, which forms a significant 
part of Challenger’s catchment area. 
Factors indicating sensitivity of demand 
in the Peel to training price rises include 
unemployment levels that trend above 
State averages, indicators of long term 
socio-economic disadvantage and reported 
deterioration in the regional labour market 
since 2013.

In 2014, 18 per cent of Challenger Institute 
students lived in regional locations, 
including 10 per cent in the Peel region, a 
decrease of 5 per cent from 2013.

AGENCy  PERFORMANCE

Challenger Institute of Technology 
AVETMISS Collection
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AGENCy  PERFORMANCE

2014 TARGET 2014 ACTUAL VARIATION REASON FOR SIGNIFICANT VARIATION

Total cost of services 
(sourced from Statement of 
Comprehensive Income)

$94,202,144 $97,196,286 $2,994,142

The variance is a result of higher than expected salary costs primarily 
as a result of employees participating in the Government’s voluntary 
severance scheme. The student curriculum hours delivered for the year 
was 3% higher than estimated which incurred additional salary costs.

Net cost of services 
(sourced from Statement of 
Comprehensive Income)

-$69,419,886 -$71,199,576 -$1,779,690
The Institute incurred higher than estimated salary costs in 2013, 
however, this was partially offset by higher than estimated non-
government revenues earned during the year.

Total Equity (sourced from 
Statement of Financial Position) $174,794,033 $166,106,663 -$8,687,370

The variance is a result of revaluation increments and decrements for 
land and buildings controlled by the Institute. These movements are 
adjusted through Equity.

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 
held (sourced from Statement of 
Cash Flows)

-$2,911,005 -$6,768,129 $3,857,124
An additional $4.9m cash was transferred in to short term investments, 
increasing the cash movement for the year. The net cash movement was 
a reduction of $2.4m for 2013.

Actual results versus targets

Summary of Financial Targets (further detail is provided in the Financial Statements)

The following performance information (financial and non-financial) is the subject of the Delivery and 
Performance Agreement between Challenger Institute of Technology and the Department of Training and 
Workforce Development, on behalf of the State Government/Minister for Training and Workforce Development.

Resources are provided for the delivery of three services, which are linked to Challenger Institute’s agency 
level outcome:

• Training programs for nationally recognised qualifications.
• Apprenticeship and traineeship training.
• Entry and bridging courses leading into mainstream courses.
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OUTCOME 
Provision of vocational education and 
training services to meet community and 
industry training needs

2014  
TARGET

2014  
ACTUAL VARIATION REASON FOR SIGNIFICANT VARIATION

KEy EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS: 
Overall Student Satisfaction Rating

WA Average 
86.9% 84.9% -2.0% The variation between Challenger’s actual and target result for 2014 was relatively 

small and just outside Challenger’s confidence interval range of +1.7%.

Graduate Achievement Rating  
(Main Reason for Training) n.a. n.a. n.a. This is bi-annual.

Graduate Destination Rating 
(Employed) n.a. n.a. n.a. This is bi-annual.

Graduate Destination Rating 
(Unemployed) n.a. n.a. n.a.

Graduate Destination Rating  
(Not in Labour Force) n.a. n.a. n.a.

Profile Achievement 100% 91.4% 8.6%

Actual Profile delivery for 2014 was approximately 9 per cent less than the 
initial planned target for the year (first agreement). The variation is largely due 
to reduced demand for publicly funded courses following student fee increases 
introduced under the State Government’s Future Skills policy and the downturn 
in economic activity in the State. Many courses have been impacted, including 
enrolments in parts of Challenger’s catchment area with a lower socio-economic 
demographic which would be more responsive to such changes. In accordance 
with normal Profile planning and delivery processes of review and adjustment 
during the year, Challenger negotiated changes with the Department for Training 
and Workforce Development to the initial planned target.

Profile Analysis for Challenger Institute 4,680,137 
SCH

4,277,012    
SCH 8.6% See note above

KEy EFFICIENCy INDICATOR: 
Overall cost per SCH $14.44 $14.83 $0.39 Target was not achieved due to a decrease in total SCH,  

which resulted in increased cost per SCH.

Summary of Key Performance Indicators (further detail is provided in Disclosures and Legal Requirements)
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AGENCy  PERFORMANCE

STRATEGIES KEy DELIVERABLES 2013 2014 COMMENTS

1. A skilled workforce 
providing industry-
driven training to 
meet workforce 
development needs.

1.1 From a representative sample of employers surveyed,  
85% or more agree that the training supplied by Challenger 
Institute satisfied a workplace need.

80% 88.1%
s Increase 
Question EQ27 Training 
prepared students for work.

1.2 From a representative sample of learners surveyed in the 
AQTF Survey, 85% or more agree that the training supplied 
by Challenger Institute prepared them well for work.

87.2% 84.3% t Decrease

2. Flexible and 
contemporary 
apprenticeship 
and traineeship 
delivery.

2.1 A minimum of 3600 places are provided in employment 
based training courses in 2014.

3,349 Students

(934,640 SCH)

3,002 Students

(853,075 SCH)
t Decrease

2.2 An increase in module completions for apprentices. 93.2% MLCR 93.4% MLCR s Increase

3. Individual 
participation in 
training, expanding 
the community’s 
access to relevant 
vocational education 
and training.

3.1 An increase in module completion rates for students.
90.2% MLCR

(Cert: I, II and pre-aps)

90.3% MLCR

(Cert: I, II and pre-aps)
s Increase

4. Support for 
regional 
communities in 
accessing training.

4.1 An increase in module completion rates by students 
located within the Peel region. 75.8% 77.4% s Increase

Challenger Institute report against 2014 strategic key deliverables
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STRATEGIES KEy DELIVERABLES 2013 2014 COMMENTS

5. A strong 
enterprising 
culture generating 
commercial and 
international 
business.

5.1 Increase in income from competitive sources based 
on 2013 figures $12,517,021 $16,230,553

s Increase 
There has been an 
increase in commercial and 
international business.

6. A capable and 
flexible training 
organisation.

6.1 An increase on 2013 measures in staff participation  
in learning and development activities.

18,240 hours 
(based on 844 staff) 
21.61 hours per staff 
member.

16,552 hours 
(based on 775 staff) 
21.35 hours per staff 
member.

 Steady 
The Sharing Our Practice 
Conference did not occur in 
2014. This has had an impact 
on the total staff hours of PD.

6.2 From a sample of 100 staff surveyed, at least 75% 
will agree that their capabilities have increased as a 
result of learning activities.

83% 87.5% s Increase

6.3 A reduction in lost time injury incidents on  
2013 figures 4 9

s Increase 
Although there has been 
an increase in lost time 
incidents, they remain below 
Industry figures. Effective 
management of these 
incidents has resulted in a 
prompt return to work.

Challenger Institute report against 2014 strategic plan key deliverables (continued)
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Current and emerging issues  
and trends
The second year of the State Government’s 
Future Skills policy and new priorities for 
publicly subsidised training will continue 
to encourage provider competition in the 
publicly funded training market and greater 
student choice. 

A fall in training demand is expected due 
to the “half year cohort”, created when 
the school starting age changed in 2003 
resulting in 50 per cent less school leavers.

Opportunities for growth will be driven 
by the Western Australian Certificate of 
Education (WACE) reform which was 
announced in January 2013. It is expected 
that this reform will translate to greater 
demand for Certificate II, Certificate III and 
Certificate IV.

Economic and social trends
Challenger’s operating environment in 
2015 will continue to be influenced by 
the transition in the Western Australian 
economy, from investment led growth 
resulting from the construction phase of 
major resource projects, to broader based 
growth requiring a workforce with diverse 
and higher level skills across a range  
of industries.

Other factors likely to influence demand for 
Challenger courses during the year include 
subdued confidence in the economy 
and softening of the labour market in 
various industries and the catchment area 
serviced by the Institute.

Likely developments and  
forecast result on operations
Further contraction of demand for 
Challenger’s products and services is 
expected to occur with the half year cohort 
entering further education and training.  
The impact of changes to student fees 
structure for publicly funded courses 
may not be fully evident for some time 
as clients and providers adjust to the 
changing training market. The Institute’s 
response to these highly variable 
circumstances will be to:

• Focus on its capabilities and depth of 
experience in workforce development 
and skill building for individuals, which 
include areas aligned to Future Skills 
priorities such as horticulture and 
sustainability, building and construction, 
community services, health and 
education, information technology, 
maritime engineering, food and 
hospitality, and oil and gas processing.

• Engage in continuous refinement of 
products ensuring relevancy.

• Actively promote innovation and 
sustainability throughout its operations.

• Actively promote innovation in the delivery 
of training.

• Invest in marketing capabilities to build 
awareness of products and services in a 
highly contestable market, with a rapidly 
growing number of training providers.

• Continue to refine the Institute’s Australian 
Centre for Energy and Process Training 
(ACEPT) facility to meet the evolving 
needs of industry.

• Strategic focus on capitalizing on the 
international and commercial markets.

Changes in written law
There were no changes in written law that 
affected Challenger Institute during 2014.

Significant Issues Impacting the Agency

AGENCy  PERFORMANCE
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Certification of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of Challenger Institute of Technology have been prepared in compliance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and the financial position as at 31 December 2014.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial 
statements misleading or inaccurate.

Paddi Creevey OAM
Chair of Governing Council 
Challenger Institute of Technology

Date: 20 February 2015

Liz Harris PSM
Chief Executive Officer  
(member of Governing Council) 
Challenger Institute of Technology

Date: 18 February 2015

Linda Walsh
Chief Financial Officer 
Challenger Institute of Technology 

Date: 16 February 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Challenger Institute of Technology. 
 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2014, 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Governing Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Governing Council is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Governing Council determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements 
relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Institute’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Governing Council, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Challenger Institute of Technology at  
31 December 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They 
are in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions.
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Report on Controls 
I have audited the controls exercised by the Challenger Institute of Technology during the year 
ended 31 December 2014. 
 
Controls exercised by the Challenger Institute of Technology are those policies and procedures 
established by the Governing Council to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of 
money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in 
accordance with legislative provisions. 
 
Governing Council’s Responsibility for Controls 
The Governing Council is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to 
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of 
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Challenger Institute of Technology based on my audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of controls 
to ensure that the Institute complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and implementation 
of relevant controls. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Challenger Institute of Technology are sufficiently 
adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of 
money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in 
accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 31 December 2014. 
 
Report on the Key Performance Indicators 
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Challenger Institute of Technology for the 
year ended 31 December 2014.  
 
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
Governing Council’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators 
The Governing Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key 
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Governing Council determines necessary 
to ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
and Assurance Standards.  
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Governing Council’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of 
outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Challenger Institute of Technology are 
relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Institute’s performance and fairly represent 
indicated performance for the year ended 31 December 2014. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements.  
 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators 
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
Challenger Institute of Technology for the year ended 31 December 2014 included on the 
Institute’s website. The Institute’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Institute’s 
website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Institute’s website. The 
auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key performance indicators described 
above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked 
to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the financial 
statements and key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks arising from 
publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial 
statements and key performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this website 
version of the financial statements and key performance indicators. 
 

 
COLIN MURPHY 
AUDITOR GENERAL  
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA 
Perth, Western Australia 
6 March 2015 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2014 2013
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Notes $ $
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 6 65,711,778 66,396,182
Supplies and services 7 19,693,681 20,149,144
Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 4,757,920 4,617,125
Grants and subsidies 9 18,000 69,776
Cost of sales 14 813,304 992,556
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 18 34,903 16,378
Other expenses 10 5,834,982 5,451,684
Total cost of services 96,864,567 97,692,845

Income
Revenue
Fee for service 11 16,230,553 12,517,021
Student fees and charges 12 12,140,863 8,485,497
Ancillary trading 13 554,932 626,003
Sales 14 1,126,085 1,228,144
Commonwealth grants and contributions 15 6,372 9,591
Interest revenue 16 797,500 953,939
Other revenue 17 2,316,339 2,176,516
Total revenue 33,172,644 25,996,711

Total income other than income from State Government 33,172,644 25,996,711

NET COST OF SERVICES 63,691,923 71,696,133

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 19
Service appropriation 55,239,494 64,449,951
Services received free of charge 1,406,409 1,592,453
Total income from State Government 56,645,903 66,042,404

(7,046,020) (5,653,729)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Changes in asset revaluation surplus 32 5,019,377 (6,993,880)
Total other comprehensive income 5,019,377 (6,993,880)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (2,026,643) (12,647,609)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Challenger Institute of Technology

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD



C
H

A
LL

E
N

G
E

R
 I

N
S

TI
TU

TE

A
N

N
U

A
L R

E
P

O
R

T 2014

41

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Challenger Institute of Technology
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 2013

Notes $ $
ASSETS
Current Assets  
Cash and cash equivalents 33 11,011,036 5,316,851
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 20,33 1,787,789 2,700,000
Inventories 21 224,614 214,736
Receivables 22 2,166,306 2,193,368
Other financial assets 23 6,073,200 10,012,274
Other current assets 24 398,778 391,072
Total Current Assets 21,661,723 20,828,301

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 25 188,439,952 162,337,765
Intangible assets 27 - -
Total Non-Current Assets 188,439,952 162,337,765

TOTAL ASSETS 210,101,675 183,166,066

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 29 1,457,404 3,102,423
Provisions 30 10,784,857 11,599,168
Other current liabilities 31 5,677,256 408,802
Total Current Liabilities 17,919,517 15,110,393

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 30 2,820,570 2,445,567
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,820,570 2,445,567

TOTAL LIABILITIES 20,740,087 17,555,960

NET ASSETS 189,361,588 165,610,106

EQUITY 32
Contributed equity 68,474,931 42,696,806
Reserves 96,445,411 91,426,034
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 24,441,246 31,487,266

TOTAL  EQUITY 189,361,588 165,610,106

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Challenger Institute of Technology
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 2013

Notes $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation - Department of Training and Workforce Development 58,639,495 63,986,732
Net cash provided by State Government 58,639,495 63,986,732

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (67,536,920) (65,718,375)
Supplies and services (18,660,384) (18,127,346)
Grants and subsidies (18,000) (69,776)
GST payments on purchases (2,221,413) (2,124,100)
GST payments to taxation authority (988,151) (659,697)
Other payments (6,395,302) (6,022,464)

Receipts
Fee for service 16,305,354 12,309,425
Student fees and charges  13,905,589 8,506,569
Ancillary trading 554,932 626,003
Commonwealth grants and contributions 6,372 9,591
Interest received 768,824 941,013
GST receipts on sales 970,571 734,913
GST receipts from taxation authority 2,160,745 2,121,385
Other receipts 3,442,424 3,054,483
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

33 (57,705,359) (64,418,376)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets (92,417) (1,496,296)
Investments in other current financial assets - (4,907,178)
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 1,182 66,989
Investments in other current financial assets 3,939,073
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 3,847,838 (6,336,485)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,781,974 (6,768,129)

Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of period 8,016,851 14,784,980

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD 33 12,798,825 8,016,851

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Challenger Institute of Technology
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 2013

Notes $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation - Department of Training and Workforce Development 58,639,495 63,986,732
Net cash provided by State Government 58,639,495 63,986,732

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (67,536,920) (65,718,375)
Supplies and services (18,660,384) (18,127,346)
Grants and subsidies (18,000) (69,776)
GST payments on purchases (2,221,413) (2,124,100)
GST payments to taxation authority (988,151) (659,697)
Other payments (6,395,302) (6,022,464)

Receipts
Fee for service 16,305,354 12,309,425
Student fees and charges  13,905,589 8,506,569
Ancillary trading 554,932 626,003
Commonwealth grants and contributions 6,372 9,591
Interest received 768,824 941,013
GST receipts on sales 970,571 734,913
GST receipts from taxation authority 2,160,745 2,121,385
Other receipts 3,442,424 3,054,483
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

33 (57,705,359) (64,418,376)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets (92,417) (1,496,296)
Investments in other current financial assets - (4,907,178)
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 1,182 66,989
Investments in other current financial assets 3,939,073
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 3,847,838 (6,336,485)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,781,974 (6,768,129)

Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of period 8,016,851 14,784,980

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD 33 12,798,825 8,016,851

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Challenger Institute of Technology
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Accumulated
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 Contributed Equity Reserves Surplus / (Deficit) Total Equity

Notes $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 January 2013 32 42,576,904 98,419,914 37,140,995 178,137,813

  Surplus/(deficit) - - (5,653,729) (5,653,729)
  Other comprehensive income - (6,993,880) - (6,993,880)
Total comprehensive income for the period (6,993,880) (5,653,729) (12,647,609)

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners :
  Other contributions by owners 119,902 - - 119,902
Total 119,902 - - 119,902

Balance at 31 December 2013 42,696,806 91,426,034 31,487,266 165,610,106

Balance as at 1 January 2014 42,696,806 91,426,034 31,487,266 165,610,106

  Surplus/(deficit) - - (7,046,020) (7,046,020)
  Other comprehensive income - 5,019,377 - 5,019,377
Total comprehensive income for the period - 5,019,377 (7,046,020) (2,026,643)

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners:
  Capital appropriations - - - -
  Other contributions by owners 25,778,125 - - 25,778,125
  Distribution to owners - - - -
Total 25,778,125 - - 25,778,125

Balance at 31 December 2014 68,474,931 96,445,411 24,441,246 189,361,588

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

1. Australian Accounting Standards 
(a)  General  
The Institute's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards. The term 'Australian Accounting Standards' includes Standards and Interpretations 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 

The Institute has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative 
dates. 

(b)  Early adoption of standards 

The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by Treasurer's 
Instruction (TI) 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'. There has been no
early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the 
Institute for the annual reporting period ended 31 December 2014. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. Unless 
otherwise stated, these policies are consistent with those adopted in the previous year. 

(a)  General statement  
The Institute is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with  
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modified by the 
Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.  

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the 
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details 
of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

(b)  Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, 
except for land and buildings which have been measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied 
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars ($).  

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been 
made in the process of applying the Institute’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts 
recognised in the financial statements.  

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material  
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

(c)  Reporting entity 
The reporting entity comprises the Institute and bodies included at note 41 ‘Related bodies’, if any.

(d)  Contributed equity 
AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers
in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be 
designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions  by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before 
such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as 
contributions by owners by TI 955 'Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities' and have 
been credited directly to Contributed Equity. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

1. Australian Accounting Standards 
(a)  General  
The Institute's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards. The term 'Australian Accounting Standards' includes Standards and Interpretations 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 

The Institute has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative 
dates. 

(b)  Early adoption of standards 

The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by Treasurer's 
Instruction (TI) 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'. There has been no
early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the 
Institute for the annual reporting period ended 31 December 2014. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. Unless 
otherwise stated, these policies are consistent with those adopted in the previous year. 

(a)  General statement  
The Institute is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with  
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modified by the 
Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.  

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the 
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details 
of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

(b)  Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, 
except for land and buildings which have been measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied 
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars ($).  

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been 
made in the process of applying the Institute’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts 
recognised in the financial statements.  

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material  
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

(c)  Reporting entity 
The reporting entity comprises the Institute and bodies included at note 41 ‘Related bodies’, if any.

(d)  Contributed equity 
AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers
in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be 
designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions  by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before 
such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as 
contributions by owners by TI 955 'Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities' and have 
been credited directly to Contributed Equity. 

The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative 
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-
reciprocal. See note 32 'Equity'. 

(e)  Income 
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. 

The majority of operating revenue of the Institute represents revenue earned from student fees and charges, fee for 
service, ancillary services, trading activities and Commonwealth grants and contributions. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised for the major business 
activities as follows: 

Sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

Provision of services 

Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.  

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Institute obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, 
usually when cash is received. 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. 
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be
purchased if not donated. 

Service appropriations  

Service appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Institute gains control of the 
appropriated funds The Institute gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank 
account.

State funds 

The funds received from the Department of Training and Workforce Development in respect of the delivery of 
services forming part of the Delivery Performance Agreement are included in State funds, disclosed under ‘Income
from State Government'. They are the result of training successfully tendered for under competitive tendering 
arrangements. This revenue is recognised at nominal value in the period in which the Institute meets the terms of the 
Agreement. See note 19 'Income from State Government'. 

Gains 

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains arising on the disposal of 
non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets. 

(f)  Property, plant and equipment  
Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising 
assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Where applicable in accordance with TI 1101, the 
capitalisation threshold has been applied to the aggregate value of a group or network of assets where the cost of 
individual items may be below the threshold but collectively the cost of the items in the group or network exceeds the 
threshold. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are 
significant in total). 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.  

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the 
date of acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement  

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and
buildings and historical cost for all other property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation (buildings only) and accumulated impairment losses. 

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative 
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-
reciprocal. See note 32 'Equity'. 

(e)  Income 
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. 

The majority of operating revenue of the Institute represents revenue earned from student fees and charges, fee for 
service, ancillary services, trading activities and Commonwealth grants and contributions. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised for the major business 
activities as follows: 

Sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

Provision of services 

Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.  

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Institute obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, 
usually when cash is received. 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. 
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be
purchased if not donated. 

Service appropriations  

Service appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Institute gains control of the 
appropriated funds The Institute gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank 
account.

State funds 

The funds received from the Department of Training and Workforce Development in respect of the delivery of 
services forming part of the Delivery Performance Agreement are included in State funds, disclosed under ‘Income
from State Government'. They are the result of training successfully tendered for under competitive tendering 
arrangements. This revenue is recognised at nominal value in the period in which the Institute meets the terms of the 
Agreement. See note 19 'Income from State Government'. 

Gains 

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains arising on the disposal of 
non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets. 

(f)  Property, plant and equipment  
Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising 
assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Where applicable in accordance with TI 1101, the 
capitalisation threshold has been applied to the aggregate value of a group or network of assets where the cost of 
individual items may be below the threshold but collectively the cost of the items in the group or network exceeds the 
threshold. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are 
significant in total). 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.  

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the 
date of acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement  

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and
buildings and historical cost for all other property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation (buildings only) and accumulated impairment losses. 

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current 
market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued by reference to 
recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the 
asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount. 

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use.  
This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use 
buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the 
asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated 
replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately. .
Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar approximate
utility (high restricted use land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land). 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the 
asset's fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply 
the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life. 

Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between 
market type assets and existing use assets. Refer to note 25 'Property, plant and equipment' for further information 
on revaluations. 

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating to that 
asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus. 

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets 
as described in note 25 ‘Property, plant and equipment’.

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a 
manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful 
lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

Buildings            40 years 
Leasehold buildings         2 to 10 years 
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers                   4 to 13 years 
Plant, furniture and general equipment                  4 to 23 years 
Computing, communications and software (a)                 1 to 10 years 
Marine craft           8 to 19 years 

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware. 

Land is not depreciated.   

(g)  Intangible assets 
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets 

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000 
or more, are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred 
below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their 
fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated 
useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by the Institute have 
a finite useful life and zero residual value.  The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

Software (a)   3 to 5 years 
Licences    3 to 10 years 
Development costs 3 to 5 years 
Web site costs  3 to 5 years 

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current 
market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued by reference to 
recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the 
asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount. 

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use.  
This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use 
buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the 
asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated 
replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately. .
Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar approximate
utility (high restricted use land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land). 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the 
asset's fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply 
the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life. 

Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between 
market type assets and existing use assets. Refer to note 25 'Property, plant and equipment' for further information 
on revaluations. 

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating to that 
asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus. 

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets 
as described in note 25 ‘Property, plant and equipment’.

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a 
manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful 
lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

Buildings            40 years 
Leasehold buildings         2 to 10 years 
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers                   4 to 13 years 
Plant, furniture and general equipment                  4 to 23 years 
Computing, communications and software (a)                 1 to 10 years 
Marine craft           8 to 19 years 

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware. 

Land is not depreciated.   

(g)  Intangible assets 
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets 

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000 
or more, are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred 
below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their 
fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated 
useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by the Institute have 
a finite useful life and zero residual value.  The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

Software (a)   3 to 5 years 
Licences    3 to 10 years 
Development costs 3 to 5 years 
Web site costs  3 to 5 years 

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware. 
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Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current 
market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued by reference to 
recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the 
asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount. 

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use.  
This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use 
buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the 
asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated 
replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately. .
Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar approximate
utility (high restricted use land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land). 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the 
asset's fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply 
the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life. 

Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between 
market type assets and existing use assets. Refer to note 25 'Property, plant and equipment' for further information 
on revaluations. 

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating to that 
asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus. 

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets 
as described in note 25 ‘Property, plant and equipment’.

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a 
manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful 
lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

Buildings            40 years 
Leasehold buildings         2 to 10 years 
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers                   4 to 13 years 
Plant, furniture and general equipment                  4 to 23 years 
Computing, communications and software (a)                 1 to 10 years 
Marine craft           8 to 19 years 

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware. 

Land is not depreciated.   

(g)  Intangible assets 
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets 

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000 
or more, are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred 
below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their 
fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated 
useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by the Institute have 
a finite useful life and zero residual value.  The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

Software (a)   3 to 5 years 
Licences    3 to 10 years 
Development costs 3 to 5 years 
Web site costs  3 to 5 years 

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware. 

Licences 

Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses. 

Development costs 

Research costs are expensed as incurred.  Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward 
when the future economic benefit can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely to 
exceed $50,000.  Other development costs are expensed as incurred. 

Computer software 

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, plant and equipment.  Software 
that is not an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as an intangible asset.  Software costing less than 
$5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. 

Web site costs  

Website costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or development 
of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the 
planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase are expensed. Costs 
incurred in building or enhancing a web site that can be reliably measured, are capitalised, to the extent that they 
represent probable future economic benefits.  

(h)  Impairment of assets 
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period.  Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the 
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the 
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where a previously revalued asset is written 
down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As 
the Institute is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, 
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of 
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption 
or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.  

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment 
at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment. 

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the 
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no 
risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is 
determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the 
recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period.  

See note 28 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing.  See note 2(n) 'Receivables' 
and note 22 'Receivables' for impairment of receivables. 

(i) Leases 
The Institute has entered into operating lease arrangements for buildings and motor vehicles.  Lease payments are 
expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the 
leased properties and vehicles.  

(j) Financial instruments 
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Institute has two categories of financial instruments: 

 Loans and receivables; and 
 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

These have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

Financial assets 

 Cash and cash equivalents 
 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
 Receivables 
 Other financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

 Payables 
  

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction 
cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
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Licences 

Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses. 

Development costs 

Research costs are expensed as incurred.  Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward 
when the future economic benefit can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely to 
exceed $50,000.  Other development costs are expensed as incurred. 

Computer software 

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, plant and equipment.  Software 
that is not an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as an intangible asset.  Software costing less than 
$5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. 

Web site costs  

Website costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or development 
of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the 
planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase are expensed. Costs 
incurred in building or enhancing a web site that can be reliably measured, are capitalised, to the extent that they 
represent probable future economic benefits.  

(h)  Impairment of assets 
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period.  Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the 
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the 
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where a previously revalued asset is written 
down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As 
the Institute is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, 
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of 
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption 
or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.  

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment 
at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment. 

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the 
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no 
risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is 
determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the 
recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period.  

See note 28 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing.  See note 2(n) 'Receivables' 
and note 22 'Receivables' for impairment of receivables. 

(i) Leases 
The Institute has entered into operating lease arrangements for buildings and motor vehicles.  Lease payments are 
expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the 
leased properties and vehicles.  

(j) Financial instruments 
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Institute has two categories of financial instruments: 

 Loans and receivables; and 
 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

These have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

Financial assets 

 Cash and cash equivalents 
 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
 Receivables 
 Other financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

 Payables 
  

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction 
cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no 
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. 

(k)  Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include restricted cash and cash 
equivalents. These are comprised of cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or 
less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value. 

(l) Accrued salaries 
Accrued salaries (see note 29 'Payables') represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial 
year, as the end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year.  
Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The Institute considers the carrying amount of 
accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value. 

The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 20 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’) consists of amounts 
paid annually into a suspense account over a period of ten financial years to largely meet the additional cash outlay 
in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26. No interest is received on this account. 

(m)  Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs are assigned by the method most 
appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being measured on a first in first out basis. 

Inventories not held for resale are measured at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they are 
measured at net realisable value. 
See note 21 'Inventories'. 

(n)  Receivables 
Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. 
impairment).  The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as 
uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account.  The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) 
is raised when there is objective evidence that the Institute will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount 
is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.  See note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 22 
‘Receivables’.

(o)  Payables 
Payables are recognised when the Institute becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of 
assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days.  See 
note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 29 'Payables'. 

(p)  Provisions 
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period. See note 30 ‘Provisions’.  

(i) Provisions - employee benefits 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of 
the reporting period. 

Annual leave 

Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and 
is therefore considered to be ‘other long-term employee benefits’. The annual leave liability is recognised 
and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the 
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.  
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 
levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the 
experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted 
using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity 
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Institute does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period. 

Long service leave 

A liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed four years of service based 
on remuneration rates current as at the end of the reporting period.
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The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no 
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. 

(k)  Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include restricted cash and cash 
equivalents. These are comprised of cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or 
less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value. 

(l) Accrued salaries 
Accrued salaries (see note 29 'Payables') represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial 
year, as the end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year.  
Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The Institute considers the carrying amount of 
accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value. 

The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 20 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’) consists of amounts 
paid annually into a suspense account over a period of ten financial years to largely meet the additional cash outlay 
in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26. No interest is received on this account. 

(m)  Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs are assigned by the method most 
appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being measured on a first in first out basis. 

Inventories not held for resale are measured at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they are 
measured at net realisable value. 
See note 21 'Inventories'. 

(n)  Receivables 
Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. 
impairment).  The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as 
uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account.  The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) 
is raised when there is objective evidence that the Institute will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount 
is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.  See note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 22 
‘Receivables’.

(o)  Payables 
Payables are recognised when the Institute becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of 
assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days.  See 
note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 29 'Payables'. 

(p)  Provisions 
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period. See note 30 ‘Provisions’.  

(i) Provisions - employee benefits 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of 
the reporting period. 

Annual leave 

Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and 
is therefore considered to be ‘other long-term employee benefits’. The annual leave liability is recognised 
and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the 
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.  
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 
levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the 
experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted 
using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity 
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Institute does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period. 

Long service leave 

A liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed four years of service based 
on remuneration rates current as at the end of the reporting period.
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An actuarial assessment of long service leave undertaken by Pricewaterhouse Coopers actuaries at 30 
June 2012 determined that the liability measured using the short-hand measurement technique above was 
not materially different from the liability determined using the present value of expected future payments.  
This calculation is consistent with the Institute’s experience of employee retention and leave taken.
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Institute does not have 
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period.  Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities 
because the Institute has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has 
completed the requisite years of service. 

Deferred Leave 

The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement 
to self-fund an additional twelve months leave in the fifth year of the agreement. The provision recognises 
the value of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. This liability is measured on the 
same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported as a current provision as employees can leave the 
scheme at their discretion at any time. 

Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer public sector 
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility 
criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to 
commencement and implementation dates. 
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new 
members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum 
scheme closed to new members since 1995. 
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension 
Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).
Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super 
Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees 
have been able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. The Institute makes contributions to 
GESB or other funds providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth 
Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions to these accumulation 
schemes extinguish the Institute’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not 
members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.  
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting.  
However, it is a defined contribution plan for Institute purposes because the concurrent contributions 
(defined contributions) made by the Institute to GESB extinguishes the Institute’s obligations to the related 
superannuation liability. 
The Institute has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded 
Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from the 
Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent 
contributions made by the Institute to the GESB.  
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from 
the Treasurer for the employer's share. See also note 2(q) 'Superannuation expense'. 

(ii)   Provisions - other 

Employment on-costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are 
recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.  
Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses' and are not included as part of the Institute's 
'Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs provision'. (See note 
10 'Other expenses' and note 30 'Provisions'.)

(q)  Superannuation expense 
The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises employer contributions paid to 
the GSS (concurrent contributions), the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), the GESB Super Scheme 
(GESBS) and other superannuation funds.

(r)  Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost 
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Institute would otherwise purchase if not 
donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets or services where they can be reliably measured. A 
corresponding expense is recognised for services received.  Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position. 

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income from 
State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(s)  Comparative figures 
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current 
financial year. 
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An actuarial assessment of long service leave undertaken by Pricewaterhouse Coopers actuaries at 30 
June 2012 determined that the liability measured using the short-hand measurement technique above was 
not materially different from the liability determined using the present value of expected future payments.  
This calculation is consistent with the Institute’s experience of employee retention and leave taken.
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Institute does not have 
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period.  Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities 
because the Institute has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has 
completed the requisite years of service. 

Deferred Leave 

The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement 
to self-fund an additional twelve months leave in the fifth year of the agreement. The provision recognises 
the value of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. This liability is measured on the 
same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported as a current provision as employees can leave the 
scheme at their discretion at any time. 

Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer public sector 
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility 
criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to 
commencement and implementation dates. 
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new 
members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum 
scheme closed to new members since 1995. 
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension 
Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).
Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super 
Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees 
have been able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. The Institute makes contributions to 
GESB or other funds providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth 
Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions to these accumulation 
schemes extinguish the Institute’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not 
members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.  
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting.  
However, it is a defined contribution plan for Institute purposes because the concurrent contributions 
(defined contributions) made by the Institute to GESB extinguishes the Institute’s obligations to the related 
superannuation liability. 
The Institute has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded 
Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from the 
Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent 
contributions made by the Institute to the GESB.  
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from 
the Treasurer for the employer's share. See also note 2(q) 'Superannuation expense'. 

(ii)   Provisions - other 

Employment on-costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are 
recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.  
Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses' and are not included as part of the Institute's 
'Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs provision'. (See note 
10 'Other expenses' and note 30 'Provisions'.)

(q)  Superannuation expense 
The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises employer contributions paid to 
the GSS (concurrent contributions), the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), the GESB Super Scheme 
(GESBS) and other superannuation funds.

(r)  Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost 
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Institute would otherwise purchase if not 
donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets or services where they can be reliably measured. A 
corresponding expense is recognised for services received.  Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position. 

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income from 
State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(s)  Comparative figures 
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current 
financial year. 

3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies  
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of 
accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  The Institute 
evaluates these judgements regularly. 

Operating Lease Commitments 
The Institute has entered into a commercial lease and has determined that the lessor retains substantially all the 
significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property. Accordingly, the lease has been classified as an 
operating lease.  

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year. 

Long Service Leave 

Several estimations and assumptions in calculating the Institute’s long service leave provision include expected 
future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments.  Changes in these 
estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Institute has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2014 that impacted on the Institute.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures,
introduces new principles for determining the type of joint arrangement that exists, which are 
more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement.

There is no financial impact for the Institute as the new standard continues to require the 
recognition of the Institute’s share of assets and share of liabilities for the unincorporated joint 
operation.

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier standard whilst 
retaining accounting and disclosure requirements for the preparation of separate financial 
statements.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number of 
clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed ownership interest.

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Institute as it does not hold 
investments in associates and joint ventures.

AASB 1031 Materiality
This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian guidance on 
materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in other Australian 
pronouncements.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint 
Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 
139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of AASB 10, 
AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures.  There is no financial impact for the Institute.

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities [AASB 132]

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in 
applying some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a 
legally enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered 
equivalent to net settlement.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets.  

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for 
Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049].

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in determining whether 
a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when financial returns are not a key attribute of the 
investor’s relationship.  The Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact 
results from the adoption of the amended AASB 10.

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, Materiality and 
Financial Instruments.

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of 
references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
(Part B).  Part B of the Standard has no financial impact.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Institute has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2014 that impacted on the Institute.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures,
introduces new principles for determining the type of joint arrangement that exists, which are 
more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement.

There is no financial impact for the Institute as the new standard continues to require the 
recognition of the Institute’s share of assets and share of liabilities for the unincorporated joint 
operation.

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier standard whilst 
retaining accounting and disclosure requirements for the preparation of separate financial 
statements.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number of 
clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed ownership interest.

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Institute as it does not hold 
investments in associates and joint ventures.

AASB 1031 Materiality
This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian guidance on 
materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in other Australian 
pronouncements.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint 
Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 
139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of AASB 10, 
AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures.  There is no financial impact for the Institute.

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities [AASB 132]

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in 
applying some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a 
legally enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered 
equivalent to net settlement.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets.  

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for 
Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049].

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in determining whether 
a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when financial returns are not a key attribute of the 
investor’s relationship.  The Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact 
results from the adoption of the amended AASB 10.

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, Materiality and 
Financial Instruments.

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of 
references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
(Part B).  Part B of the Standard has no financial impact.

Voluntary Changes in Accounting Policy 
There have been no voluntary changes in accounting policy.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application 
of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements.  Consequently, the Institute has not applied early any 
of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Institute.  Where 
applicable, the Institute plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.

Operative for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning 
on/after

AASB 9 Financial Instruments
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.

The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after 
being amended by AASB 2012-6, AASB 2013-9, and, AASB 2014-1 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting Standards.  The Institute has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2018

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose 
financial statements of not-for-profit entities within the General Government Sector. 
The Institute will be required to disclose additional budgetary information and 
explanations of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though 
there is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2014

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 
4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 
and Int 10 & 12]

The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after 
being amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards.

1 Jan 2018

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 
2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 
136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.

The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by 
AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018.  The Institute has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2018

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial Instruments.

Part C of this omnibus Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017
(Part C).  The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 
1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1.  The Institute has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of AASB 9.

1 Jan 2017

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Part A changes consist primarily of clarifications to Accounting Standards and have 
no financial impact for the Institute.

Part B has no financial impact as the Institute contributes to schemes that are either 
defined contribution plans, or deemed to be defined contribution plans.

Part C has no financial impact as the Standard removes references to AASB 1031
Materiality from a number of Accounting Standards.

1 Jul 2014

1 Jul 2014

1 Jul 2014

Part D has no financial impact as the Institute is not required to apply AASB 14
Regulatory Deferral Accounts.

1 Jan 2016

Part E makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments to other 
Standards.  It has not yet been assessed by the Institute to determine the 
application or potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2015
1 Jan 2018
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Voluntary Changes in Accounting Policy 
There have been no voluntary changes in accounting policy.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application 
of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements.  Consequently, the Institute has not applied early any 
of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Institute.  Where 
applicable, the Institute plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.

Operative for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning 
on/after

AASB 9 Financial Instruments
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.

The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after 
being amended by AASB 2012-6, AASB 2013-9, and, AASB 2014-1 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting Standards.  The Institute has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2018

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose 
financial statements of not-for-profit entities within the General Government Sector. 
The Institute will be required to disclose additional budgetary information and 
explanations of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though 
there is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2014

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 
4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 
and Int 10 & 12]

The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after 
being amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards.

1 Jan 2018

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 
2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 
136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.

The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by 
AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018.  The Institute has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2018

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial Instruments.

Part C of this omnibus Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017
(Part C).  The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 
1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1.  The Institute has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of AASB 9.

1 Jan 2017

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Part A changes consist primarily of clarifications to Accounting Standards and have 
no financial impact for the Institute.

Part B has no financial impact as the Institute contributes to schemes that are either 
defined contribution plans, or deemed to be defined contribution plans.

Part C has no financial impact as the Standard removes references to AASB 1031
Materiality from a number of Accounting Standards.

1 Jul 2014

1 Jul 2014

1 Jul 2014

Part D has no financial impact as the Institute is not required to apply AASB 14
Regulatory Deferral Accounts.

1 Jan 2016

Part E makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments to other 
Standards.  It has not yet been assessed by the Institute to determine the 
application or potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2015
1 Jan 2018

Operative for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning 
on/after

AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Accounting for Acquisitions of 
Interests in Joint Operations [AASB 1 & 11]

The Institute establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives and does not 
routinely acquire interests in Joint Operations.  Therefore, there is no financial 
impact on application of the Standard.

1 Jan 2016

AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarification of Acceptable 
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138]

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Institute as 
depreciation and amortisation is not determined by reference to revenue generation, 
but by reference to consumption of future economic benefits.

1 Jan 2016

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

6 Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries (a) 60,171,469 60,961,428
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b) 5,540,309 5,434,754

65,711,778 66,396,182

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave entitlements including superannuation
    contribution component.
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, and Gold State and GESBS and other eligible funds.

Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers' compensation insurance, are included at note 10 'Other expenses'. 
Employment on-costs liability is included at note 30 'Provisions'.

7 Supplies and services
Consumables and minor equipment 3,552,901 3,789,474
Communication expenses 481,794 591,927
Utilities expenses 2,154,171 2,371,719
Consultancies and contracted services 8,037,511 7,668,997
Minor works 1,685,094 2,110,415
Repairs and maintenance 678,129 490,435
Operating lease and hire charges 1,225,964 1,172,159
Travel and passenger transport 293,444 292,911
Advertising and public relations 331,955 494,826
Supplies and services - other 882,515 846,416
Supplies and Services -PD staff activites  370,203 319,864

19,693,681 20,149,144

8 Depreciation expense
Buildings 2,426,549 2,154,829
Leasehold improvements - buildings 672,198 672,198
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 22,725 24,449
Plant, furniture and general equipment 1,226,372 1,169,132
Computers and communication network 358,523 389,135
Marine craft 51,553 207,382

4,757,920 4,617,125

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

9 Grants and subsidies
Payments to non-TAFE providers for VET service delivery 17,550 57,989
Other 450 11,787

18,000 69,776

10 Other expenses
Building maintenance 1,618,060 1,422,854
Doubtful debts expense 64,668 223,303
Employment on-costs 3,947,880 3,608,236
Student prizes and awards 59,916 66,242
Audit fees (Office of the Auditor General) 129,000 124,000
Other 15,458 7,049

5,834,982 5,451,684

11 Fee for service
Fee for service - general 11,068,937 8,558,319
Fee for service - Department of Training and Workforce Development 324,625 335,235
Fee for service - Government (other than Department of Training and Workforce Development) 151,974 144,146
International division fees 4,685,017 3,479,321

16,230,553 12,517,021

12 Student fees and charges
Tuition and enrolment fees 8,513,296 4,928,409
Resource fees 3,017,481 3,391,467
Other Institute fees 610,086 165,621

12,140,863 8,485,497

13 Ancillary trading
Live works (not a trading activity) 544,238 619,892
Other ancillary revenue 10,694 6,111

554,932 626,003

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

14 Trading profit/(loss)
(a) Bookshop:
Sales 500,473 617,459
  Cost of sales:
  Opening inventory (215,965) (298,876)
  Purchases (414,095) (518,140)

(630,061) (817,016)
  Closing inventory 225,843 215,965
Cost of goods sold (404,218) (601,051)
Trading profit/(loss) - Bookshop 96,255 16,408

(b) Cafeteria (non-training related)
Sales 625,612 610,685
  Cost of sales:
  Purchases (409,086) (391,504)
Cost of goods sold (409,086) (391,504)

Trading profit/(loss) - Cafeteria 216,526 219,181

312,781 235,589
See note 2(m) 'Inventories' and note 21 'Inventories'.

15 Commonwealth grants and contributions
Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions 6,372 9,591

6,372 9,591

16 Interest revenue
Interest revenue (from bank deposits) 797,500 953,939

797,500 953,939

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

17 Other revenue
Rental and facilities fees 464,388 555,628
Copyright and royalties revenue 135 -
Sponsorship and donations revenue 74,939 400,905
Recoups of expenditure from external organisations 633,181 203,363
Revenue from the provision of Shared Services 924,514 729,644
Insurance recoveries 8,446 64,163
Workers compensation recoveries 131,068 46,864
Proceeds from disposal of custodial assets 23,518 57,359
Miscellaneous revenue 56,150 118,590

2,316,339 2,176,516

18 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers - 55,636
Plant, furniture and general equipment 1,182 10,232
Computers and communication network - 1,121
Total proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 1,182 66,989

Carrying amount of non-current assets disposed
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers - (295)
Plant, furniture and general equipment (35,955) (62,892)
Computers and communication network (130) (17,674)
Marine craft - (2,506)
Total cost of disposal of non-current assets (36,085) (83,367)

Net gain/(loss) (34,903) (16,378)

See note 25 'Property, plant and equipment'.
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

19 Income from State Government

Appropriation received during the year:

Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 52,890,337 62,493,566
Other non-DPA grants 2,349,157 1,956,385
Total State funds 55,239,494 64,449,951

Services received free of charge from other State government agencies during
the financial period :

Department of Training and Workforce Development
- Corporate systems support 1,199,956 980,940
- Marketing and publications - 113,567
- Human resources, and industrial relations support 27,819 46,324
- Other 174,635 166,087

1,402,409 1,306,918

Other Government - Department of Training and Workforce Development -
Other Government - Department of Education 4,000 285,535

1,406,409 1,592,453

Total income from State Government 56,645,903 66,042,404

(a)  Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered.
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost are recognised as revenue (and assets or expenses) equivalent to the
fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those sevices that can be reliably determined and which would have been purchased if not donated.
For BMW capital works project management services received fee of charge, the revenue is recognised at fair value.

20 Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Current
Provision for the 27th pay due to be paid in 2014 - 2,700,000
VET FEE HELP overpayment 1,787,789

1,787,789 2,700,000
21 Inventories held for resale:

Bookshop (at cost) 225,843 215,965
Less: Provision for obsolete stock (1,229) (1,229)

Total 224,614 214,736

See also note 2(m) 'Inventories' and note 14 'Trading profit/(loss)'.

Service appropriation  (a) (State funds received from Department of Training and Workforce Development):
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

22 Receivables

Current
Receivables - trade 1,576,007 1,099,294
Receivables - students 606,838 949,175
Accrued revenue 245,299 768,137
Allowance for impairment of receivables (499,446) (800,178)
GST receivable 237,608 176,940
Total current receivables 2,166,306 2,193,368

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:
Balance at start of  period (800,178) (793,817)
Doubtful debts expense (64,668) (223,303)
Amount written off during the period 367,842 216,942
Impariment losses reversed during the period (2,444) -
Balance at end of  period (499,446) (800,178)

The Institute does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables.

See also note 2(n) 'Receivables' and note 38 'Financial instruments'. 

23 Other financial assets
Current
Short term cash investments (3-4 months) 6,073,200 10,012,274

6,073,200 10,012,274
24 Other assets

Current
Prepayments 345,687 331,709
Other current assets 53,091 59,363
Total current 398,778 391,072
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25 Property, plant and equipment

Land
At fair value (a) 63,510,000 65,010,000

63,510,000 65,010,000
Buildings
At fair value (a) 112,151,000 84,456,000

112,151,000 84,456,000
Buildings under construction
Construction costs 1,493,742 1,328,684

1,493,742 1,328,684
Leasehold improvements
At cost 9,181,189 9,181,188
Accumulated depreciation (6,828,496) (6,156,298)

2,352,693 3,024,890
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 
At cost 451,885 350,201
Accumulated depreciation (309,215) (286,490)

142,670 63,711

Plant,  furniture and general equipment
At cost 16,782,763 14,943,472
Accumulated depreciation (8,787,762) (7,634,123)

7,995,001 7,309,349
Computer equipment, communication network
At cost 2,622,004 2,677,269
Accumulated depreciation (1,962,693) (1,719,226)

659,311 958,043
Marine craft
At cost 1,251,906 1,251,906
Accumulated depreciation (1,116,371) (1,064,818)

135,536 187,088

188,439,952 162,337,765

(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2014 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 
     The valuations were performed during the year ended 31 December 2014 and recognised at 31 December 2014. In undertaking the revaluation, fair value
     was determined by reference to market values for land: $63,510,000 (2013: $65,010,000) and buildings: $112,151,000 (2013: $85,456,000). For the remaining balance,
     fair value of buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and fair value of land was determined on the basis of comparison
     with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land). See note 2(f) 'Property, plant and equipment'.
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    Information on fair value measurements is provided in Note 26.

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting 
 period are set out in the table below.

Land Buildings
Buildings under

construction
Leasehold 

improvements

Motor 
vehicles, 
caravans 

and trailers 

 Plant,  
furniture and 

general 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment, 

communication 
network Marine craft Total

2014 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Carrying amount at start of year 65,010,000 84,456,000 1,328,684 3,024,890 63,711 7,309,349 958,043 187,088 162,337,765
Additions 23,602,172 839,830 109,529 1,272,575 59,791 25,883,897
Transfers between classes (674,772) 674,772 -
Other Disposals (7,845) (35,323) - (43,168)
Revaluation increments/(decrements) (1,500,000) 6,519,377 5,019,377
Depreciation - (2,426,549) - (672,197) (22,725) (1,226,372) (358,523) (51,553) (4,757,919)

Carrying amount at end of period 63,510,000 112,151,000 1,493,742 2,352,693 142,670 7,995,001 659,311 135,535 188,439,952

Land Buildings
Buildings under

construction
Leasehold 

improvements

Motor 
vehicles, 
caravans 

and trailers 

 Plant,  
furniture and 

general 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment, 

communication 
network Marine craft Total

2013 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Carrying amount at start of year 72,060,000 85,455,000 2,281,708 3,697,088 77,261 8,234,819 378,111 40,614 172,224,601
Additions - - 347,299 - 10,899 301,158 974,423 9,092 1,642,871
Donations - - - - - - - 347,272 347,272
Transfers between classes - 1,099,709 (1,099,709) - - - - - -
Other Disposals - - - - - (57,496) (5,356) (2,508) (65,360)
Adjustments - - (200,614) - - - - - (200,614)
Revaluation increments/(decrements) (7,050,000) 56,120 - - - - - - (6,993,880)
Depreciation - (2,154,829) - (672,198) (24,449) (1,169,132) (389,135) (207,382) (4,617,126)

Carrying amount at end of  period 65,010,000 84,456,000 1,328,684 3,024,890 63,711 7,309,349 958,043 187,088 162,337,765
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26 Fair value measurements

Assets measured at fair value : Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
At end of period

2014 $ $ $ $
Land (Note 25) - - 63,510,000 63,510,000
Buildings (Note 25) - - 112,151,000 112,151,000

- - 175,661,000 175,661,000

Assets measured at fair value : Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
 At end of period 

2013 $ $ $ $
Land (Note 25) - - 65,010,000 65,010,000
Buildings (Note 25) - - 84,456,000 84,456,000

- - 149,466,000 149,466,000

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
2014 Land Buildings

$ $
Fair Value at start of period 65,010,000 84,456,000
Additions - 23,602,172
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (1,500,000) 6,519,377
Depreciation Expense - (2,426,549)
Fair Value at end of period 63,510,000 112,151,000

2013  Land  Buildings 
 $  $ 

Fair Value at start of period 72,060,000 85,455,000
Additions - 1,099,709
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (7,050,000) 56,120
Depreciation Expense - (2,154,829)
Fair Value at end of period 65,010,000 84,456,000

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Valuation processes

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.

Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. Transfers are
generally limited to assets newly classified as non-current assets held for sale as Treasurer's instructions require valuations of land and buildings
to be categorised within Level 3 where the valuations utilise significant Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis.

Fair value for existing use specialised building is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied
in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed economic benefit, expired economic benefit or obsolescence of the asset.
Current replacement cost is generally determined by reference to the market observable replacement cost of a substitute asset of camparable utility and
gross project size specifications.

Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of comparable land that is unrestricted less
restoration costs to return the site to a vacant and marketable condition (low restricted use land), or, comparison with market evidence for land with low level 
utility (high restricted use land).

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Institute are derived and evaluated as follows:

Historical cost of building per square metre floor area (m2)

The costs of construction of specialised buildings are extracted from financial records of the Institute, then indexed by movements in construction costs 
by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).

Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset

These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).

Selection of land with restricted utility

Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility.
Relevant comparators of land with low level utility are selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements

Description and fair value as at 
31 December 2014

Valuation 
technique(s)

Unobservable 
inputs

Range of 
unobservable 
inputs 
(weighted – 
average) 

Range of 
unobservable 
inputs (weighted – 
average)

$ 2014 2013

Land Market
Selection of 
land

$21/m2 - 
$4,744/m2 $20/m2 - $4,744/m2

( $63,510,000 ) approach with restricted ($954/m2) ($964/m2)
utility

Buildings Depreciated
-26.67% - 

14.25% per year
-2.96% - 18.25% per 

year

( $112,151,000 ) Replacement
(-5.85% per 

year) (3.63% per year)
Cost

$782 - 
$2,615/m2 $509 - $2,968/m2

($1,606/m2) ($1,411/m2)

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Notes 25.

27 Intangible assets

Computer software
At cost 144,909 144,909
Accumulated amortisation (144,909) (144,909)

- -

Higher value of similar land 
increases estimated fair 
value.

Consumed 
economic 
benefit/ 
obsolescence of 
asset

Relationship of 
unobservable inputs to 
fair value

Historical cost of 
building per 
square metre 
floor area (m2)

Greater consumption of 
economic benefit or 
increased obsolescence 
lowers fair value.

Higher current cost per m2 
increases fair value.
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28 Impairment of assets

There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment or intangible assets at 31 December 2014.

The Institute held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period. At the end 
of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.

All surplus assets as at 31 December 2014 have been written off.
29 Payables

Current 
Trade payables 96,361 22,785
GST payable 69,050 86,630
Accrued expenses 778,647 1,093,828
Accrued salaries and related costs 509,501 1,888,978
Paid parental leave payable 3,846 10,202
Total current 1,457,404 3,102,423

30 Provisions

Current
Employee benefits provision
  Annual leave (a) 3,637,782 3,881,353
  Long service leave (b) 6,261,002 6,816,313
  Deferred Salary Scheme ( c) 259,988 224,992

10,158,772 10,922,658
Other provisions
  Employment on-costs (d) 626,085 676,510
Total current 10,784,857 11,599,168

Non-current
Employee benefits provision
  Long service leave (b) 2,652,812 2,300,113

Other provisions
  Employment on-costs (d) 167,758 145,454
Total non-current 2,820,570 2,445,567

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
     of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

       Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 2,968,812 3,158,736
       More than 12 months after  the end of the reporting period 668,970 722,617

3,637,782 3,881,353

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end 
     of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

       Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 1,565,251 1,704,078
       More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 7,348,563 7,412,348

8,913,814 9,116,426

(c) Deferred salary scheme liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months 
     after the end of the reporting period. Actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

       Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 196,836 158,539
       More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 63,153 66,453

259,989 224,992

(d) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including workers' compensation insurance. 
      The provision is the present value of expected future payments.
      The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 10 'Other expenses'.

Movements in other provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below.

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period 821,964 780,386
Additional provisions recognised 318,236 351,315

(346,357) (309,737)
Carrying amount at end of period 793,843 821,964
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 Other liabilities

Current 
Income received in advance for VET FEE HELP 1,787,789 -
Unearned DPA revenue 3,400,001 -
Money/deposits held in trust 62,728 55,357
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits tax payable 426,738 353,445
Total current 5,677,256 408,802

32 Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Institute on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets
 of the Institute. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

Contributed equity
Balance at start of period 42,696,806 42,576,904

Contributions by owners
Capital appropriation - 119,902

Transfer of net assets from other agencies: 25,778,125
Total contributions by owners 25,778,125 119,902

Balance at end of period 68,474,931 42,696,806

Reserves
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at start of period 91,426,034 98,419,914
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
 Land (1,500,000) (7,050,000)
 Buildings 6,519,377 56,120
Balance at end of period 96,445,411 91,426,034

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 
Balance at start of period 31,487,266 37,140,995
Result for the period (7,046,020) (5,653,729)
Balance at end of period 24,441,246 31,487,266

Total Equity at end of period 189,361,588 165,610,106
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33 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of cash

Cash on hand 11,847 14,404
Cash at bank 3,624,312 4,673,192
Short term deposits (term deposits 1-3 months) 7,374,877 629,255

11,011,036 5,316,851
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 20 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents') 1,787,789 2,700,000

12,798,825 8,016,851
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities

Net cost of services (63,691,923) (71,696,133)

Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 8 'Depreciation and amortisation expense) 4,757,920 4,617,125
Doubtful debts expense, losses and write-offs (note 10 ‘Other expenses’) 64,668 223,303
Resources received free of charge (note 19 ‘Income from State Government’) 1,406,409 1,592,453
Written Down Value on sale of property, plant  and equipment (note 18 ‘Net gain/(loss) on sale of non-current assets’) 36,085 83,368
Department of Training and Workforce Development Capital Works Contribution expensed in current year -
Other non-cash items 6,128 (18,431)
(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (a) 27,062 (258,133)
Current inventories (9,878) 82,911
Other current assets (7,705) (3,845)
Other non current assets
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Current payables (a) (1,645,020) 340,648
Current provisions (814,311) 713,745
Other current liabilities 1,868,453 (119,041)
Non-current provisions 375,002 (48,847)
Other non-current liabilities
Net GST receipts/(payments) (b) (1,250,843) (1,389,187)
Change in GST in receivables/payables (c) 1,172,594 1,461,688

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (57,705,359) (64,418,376)

the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in 
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(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect 
     of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items.
(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables

34 Commitments

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Within 1 year 1,089,275 1,172,013
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,369,804 3,518,658

3,459,079 4,690,671

The commitments below are inclusive of GST.

Capital expenditure commitments
Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the 

Within 1 year 1,591,306 607,477
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,500,000 -

3,091,306 607,477

Other expenditure commitments
Other expenditure commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period date but not recognised

Within 1 year 582,137 1,333,061
582,137 1,333,061

35 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

There are no contingent liabilities and no contingent assts as at 31 December 2014.

36 Events occurring after the reporting period

No events have occurred after balance date that would require disclosure or an adjustment to the financial statements as at 31 December 2014.

financial statements, are payable as follows:

as liabilities are payable as follows:

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:
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37 Explanatory statement

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014 and between actual results for 2013 and 2014 are shown below.
Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 5% and $500,000. 

Significant variances between estimated and actual result for 2014
2014 2014

Estimate Actual Variance
Income $ $ $
Fee for service 11,788,703 16,230,553 4,441,850
Student fees and charges 14,777,718 12,140,863 (2,636,855)
Other revenue 1,162,097 2,316,339 1,154,242

Expenses
Other expenses 4,988,766 5,834,982 846,216

Income
Fee for service
A number of large contracts were won during the year that were not anticipated at the time of preparing the Estimates, resulting in additional revenue streams for 2014.
Student fees and charges
2014 saw the introduction of a new student entitlement model and new fee structure. Since the Estimates were prepared the government introduced a number of fee caping
arrangements that reduce revenue in 2014. In addition, student numbers were lower than expected.
Other revenue
Equipment and facility hire revenue was much higher than anticipated in 2014. Recoups of expenditure and insurance recoveries were also higher than estimated and include
a performance adjustment for workers' compensation insurance resulting in the reimbursement of premiums.

Expenses
Other expenses
The Institute incurred additonal repairs and maintenance costs on its buildings that were not expected at the time of preparing the Estimates.
Employee on-costs were also higher than estimated as a result of higher salaries expense associated with the increased fee for service revenue.

2014 2013 Variance
$ $ $

Income 
Fee for service 16,230,553 12,517,021 3,713,532
Student fees and charges 12,140,863 8,485,497 3,655,366
State funds 56,645,903 66,042,404 (9,396,501)

Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2014
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Fee for service
A number of large contracts were won during the year resulting in additional revenue streams for 2014.
Student fees and charges
2014 saw the introduction of a new student entitlement model and new fee structure. This significantly increased the cost of course fees for students.
State funds
Revenue from the state government has fallen as a result of the implementation of the entitlement model requiring students to pay a greater percentage
of the cost of training. This fall in revenue is partially offset by the increase in student fees and charges revenue for 2014.

38 Financial instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial instruments held by the Institute are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, loans and 
receivables and payables. The Institute has limited exposure to financial risks. 
The Institute's overall risk management program focuses on managing  the risk identified below:

Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Institute’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting 
in financial loss to the Institute.  

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in the table at note 38(c) 
‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 22 ‘Receivables’.

Credit risk associated with the Institute’s financial assets is minimal because the Institute trades only with recognised, creditworthy 
third parties. The Institute has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an 
appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Institute's 
exposure to bad debt is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there are no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk arises when the Institute is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Institute is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.  

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Institute's 
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Institute does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially 

The Institute has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring forecast
cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Liquidity risk

Market risk 

exposed to other price risks.
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(b) Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and 
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are : 2014 2013

$ $
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,011,036 5,316,851
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 1,787,789 2,700,000
Receivables (a) 1,928,698 2,016,429
Other financial assets 6,073,200 10,012,274

Financial Liabilities
Payables 1,457,404 3,102,423

(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

(c) Financial instrument disclosures
Credit risk
The following table discloses the Institute's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Institute's maximum exposure to
credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets
that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Institute.

The Institute does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.
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Ageing analysis of financial assets

Past due but not impaired

Carrying 
Amount

 Not past due 
and not 
impaired Up to 1 month 1-3 months

 3 months to 
1 year 

More than 1 
year

 Impaired 
Financial 
Assets 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Financial Assets
2014

Cash and cash equivalents 11,011,036 11,011,036 - - - - -
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 1,787,789 1,787,789 - - - - -
Receivables  (a) 1,928,698 1,174,941 753,757 - - -
Other financial assets 6,073,200 6,073,200 - - - - -

20,800,723 20,046,966 - 753,757 - - -
2013

Cash and cash equivalents 5,316,851 5,316,851 - - - - -
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 2,700,000 2,700,000 - - - - -
Receivables  (a) 2,016,429 1,332,124 - 405,999 249,458 28,848 -
Other financial assets 10,012,274 10,012,274 - - - - -

20,045,554 19,361,249 - 405,999 249,458 28,848 -

(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

The following table details the Institute’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. 
The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Maturity dates
Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed Interest 
Rate

Variable Interest 
Rate

 Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

Up to 1 
month 1-3 months

3 months to 1 
year

% $ $ $ $ $ $ $
2014

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3.50% 11,011,036 - 11,011,036 - 11,011,036 - -
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 3.50% 1,787,789 - 1,787,789 - 1,787,789 - -
Receivables  (a) 1,928,698 - - 1,928,698 - - -
Other financial assets 3.50% 6,073,200 - 6,073,200 - - - 6,073,200

20,800,723 - 18,872,025 1,928,698 12,798,825 - 6,073,200
Financial Liabilities
Payables 1,457,404 - - 1,457,404 1,457,404 - -

1,457,404 - - 1,457,404 1,457,404 - -

(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).
Maturity dates

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed Interest 
Rate

Variable Interest 
Rate

 Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

Up to 1 
month 1-3 months

3 momths to 1 
year

% $ $ $ $ $ $ $
2013

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3.85% 5,316,851 - 5,316,851 - 5,316,851 - -
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 3.85% 2,700,000 - 2,700,000 - 2,700,000 - -
Receivables  (a) 2,016,429 - - 2,016,429 - - -
Other financial assets 3.85% 10,012,274 - 10,012,274 - - - 10,012,274

20,045,554 - 18,029,125 2,016,429 8,016,851 - 10,012,274
Financial Liabilities
Payables 3,102,423 - - 3,102,423 3,102,423 - -

3,102,423 - - 3,102,423 3,102,423 - -

(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Interest rate exposure

Interest rate exposure

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.

Carrying amount

Surplus Equity Surplus  Equity 
2014 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,011,036 (110,110) (110,110) 110,110 110,110
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 1,787,789 (17,878) (17,878) 17,878 17,878
Other financial assets 6,073,200 (60,732) (60,732) 60,732 60,732
Total Increase/(Decrease) (188,720) (188,720) 188,720 188,720

 Carrying 
amount  Surplus  Equity  Surplus  Equity 

2013 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 5,316,851 (53,169) (53,169) 53,169 53,169
Restricted cash and cash equivalent 2,700,000 (27,000) (27,000) 27,000 27,000
Other financial instruments 10,012,274 (100,123) (100,123) 100,123 100,123
Total Increase/(Decrease) (180,292) (180,292) 180,292 180,292

Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are 
recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

+ 100 Basis Points

- 100 Basis Points

- 100 Basis Points

+ 100 Basis Points

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Institute's financial assets and liabilities at the 
end of the reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the
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CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

39 Remuneration of members of the Institute and senior officers

$ 2014 2013
         $0  -  $10,000 10 12

$220,001  -  $230,000 1 1

$ $
Base remuneration and superannuation 229,802 212,061
Annual leave and long service leave accruals - 13,113
Other  benefits 11,586 11,580
Total remuneration of the members of the Institute 241,388 236,754

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of members of the Institute.

Remuneration of senior officers

2014 2013
$

$ 50,001  -  $ 60,000 - 1
$140,001 -  $150,000 1 -
$170,001  -  $180,000 - 4
$180,001  -  $190,000 2 -
$210,001  -  $220,000 1 -

$ $
Base remuneration and superannuation 684,371 698,339
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 16,593 40,436
Other  benefits 26,145 11,416
Total remuneration of senior officers 727,109 750,191

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of senior officers other
than senior officers reported as members of the Institute.  No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme. 

salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Institute, whose total of fees,

The number of members of the Institute whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary 
Remuneration of members of the Institute

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

40 Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current financial year is as follows:

2014 2013
$ $

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance indicators 131,000 129,000

41 Related bodies
The Institute has no related bodies.

42 Affiliated bodies
The Institute has no affiliated bodies.

43 Supplementary financial information
2014 2013

(a) Write-Offs $ $
      Public property written-off by the Executive Council during the financial year:
      Bad debts 367,842 216,942
      Inventory - 835

367,842 217,777

(b) Losses through theft, defaults and other causes
      Amounts recovered 11,384 9,895

11,384 9,895

44 Schedule of income and expenditure by service

The Institute provides only one service (as defined by Treasurer's Instruction 1101 (9) and that is Vocational Education and Training Delivery.
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators
We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for 
assisting users to assess the performance of Challenger Institute of Technology, and fairly represent the performance 
of Challenger Institute of Technology for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

KEy PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Paddi Creevey OAM
Chair of Governing Council 
Challenger Institute of Technology

Date: 20 February 2015

Liz Harris PSM
Chief Executive Officer 
Challenger Institute of Technology

Date: 20 February 2015
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1. 2014 Student Satisfaction Survey
The 2014 Student Satisfaction Survey was administered on behalf of the Department of 
Training and Workforce Development by Patterson Research Group (formerly Patterson 
Market Research).  This survey is carried out on an annual basis with its key focus being 
to attain an understanding of students’ training requirements and to measure the quality of 
training and services delivered by Challenger.  Full-time and part-time students enrolled in a 
course and/or qualifications at a State Training Provider Institute were asked to participate in 
the survey. To obtain optimal response rates data collection included an online survey, mass 
market mail out and telephone interviews. 

To obtain an overall student satisfaction rating (our key performance indicator) students were 
asked ‘Overall, how satisfied were you with your course?’ Responses were on a five-point 
scale where one is ‘very satisfied’ to five being ‘very dissatisfied’, including a ‘neither satisfied 
nor dissatisfied’ option.  The rating is based on the total number of ‘satisfied’ and ‘very 
satisfied’ respondents from the Institute.

Table 1: Overall Student Satisfaction Rating

2007 
Actual

2008 
Actual

2009 
Actual

2010 
Actual

2011 
Actual

2012 
Actual

2013 
Actual

2014 
Target

2014 
Actual

Variation 
2014 

actual vs 
target

Challenger 
Institute 83.4% 84.9% 84% 85.3% 86.6% 86.5% 85.1% WA 

average 84.9% 2.0%

Western 
Australia 86.8% 85.4% 85.6% 86.7% 88.4% 86.3% 85.9% n.a. 86.9% n.a.

 
NOTES:
a. Source: Department of Training and Workforce Development (Patterson Research Group) 

Student Satisfaction Survey.
b. Derivation: The usable population for Challenger was determined at N=7,903 students. In 

total N=1,389 unique and valid responses were collected from Challenger students, for the 
question, “overall how satisfied are you with this course?”, equating to a response rate of 
17.6% (i.e. N=1,389/N=7,903). The Confidence Interval for the survey is ±1.7% with a 95% 
level of confidence. The Standard Error is calculated at 0.9%.

c. Variation: The variation between Challenger’s actual and target result for 2014 was 
relatively small just outside Challenger’s confidence interval range of +1.7%.

Desired Outcome
Challenger’s agency level desired 
outcome is the provision of vocational 
education and training services to meet 
community and industry training needs.

The Institute’s purpose is ‘For	everyone	
a	pathway	to	a	better	future’.

Key Effectiveness  
Performance Indicators
To gauge our performance against 
our desired outcome and purpose 
the Institute measures its success 
against two independently run student 
satisfaction surveys – the WA Student 
Satisfaction Survey and the National 
Centre for Vocational Education 
Research (NCVER) Student Outcomes 
Survey.  They have been used for three 
of the Institute’s Key Effectiveness 
Performance Indicators reported below.

The Australian Quality Training 
Framework (AQTF) survey is also 
used by Challenger Institute to 
measure performance and is used by 
all Registered Training Organisations 
(RTOs) in Australia. This data is also 
used by the Training Accreditation 
Council (TAC) to measure performance, 
however it is not currently part of the 
Key Performance Indicators used for 
the annual reporting process.

KEy PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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2.1 GRADuATE ACHIEVEMENT RATING
The following effectiveness key performance indicator measures the extent to which 
Challenger graduates have fully or partly achieved their main reason for undertaking their 
training (course/qualification). 

Table 2: Graduate Achievement Rating (main reason for training)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Challenger n.a. 84.5% n.a. 87.1% n.a. 84.5% n.a.

Western 
Australia n.a. 87.8 % n.a. 87.5% n.a. 86.7% n.a.

Australia n.a. 86.4% n.a. 85.7% n.a. 83.5% n.a.
 
 
NOTES:
a. Source: Student Outcomes Survey, NCVER. 

b. Explanatory Note: The Institute is unable to provide statistically valid Institute level data 
for 2008, 2010, 2012 and 2014 as it is not available. Statistically reliable Institute level 
data is available from NCVER biennially.

2. NCVER Student Outcomes 
Survey
The Student Outcomes Survey is 
conducted by the Social Research 
Centre on behalf of NCVER. 
The survey focuses on students’ 
outcomes and satisfaction with 
vocational education and training. 
This encompasses personal and 
training characteristics, employment 
outcomes, further study activity, 
satisfaction with the training, whether 
they achieved their main reason 
for undertaking the training, and 
how relevant it was to their current 
employment. 

Surveys are sent to a sample 
of Challenger graduates who 
had successfully completed a 
qualification in the previous reporting 
year. This is stratified by study 
location, field of education, gender 
and age.

KEy PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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KEy PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

2.2 GRADuATE DESTINATION RATING
The Graduate Destination Rating is an indicator of the Institute’s provision of relevant  
quality training that improves student employability.

Table 3.1: Graduate Destination Rating (Employed)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Challenger 
Institute n.a. 78.0% n.a. 77.9% n.a. 78.9% n.a.

Western 
Australia n.a. 78.9% n.a. 80.4% n.a. 81.4% n.a.

Australia n.a. 77.8% n.a. 77.4% n.a. 78.2% n.a.

Table 3.2: Graduate Destination Rating (unemployed)  

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Challenger 
Institute n.a. 9.3% n.a. 11.0% n.a. 11.5% n.a.

Western 
Australia n.a. 10.1% n.a. 10.0% n.a. 10.4% n.a.

Australia n.a. 11.3% n.a. 12.7% n.a. 13.4% n.a.

Table 3.3: Graduate Destination Rating (Not in labour force)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Challenger 
Institute n.a. 12.3% n.a. 10.6% n.a. 8.8% n.a.

Western 
Australia n.a. 10.7% n.a. 9.2% n.a. 8.0% n.a.

Australia n.a. 10.4% n.a. 9.6% n.a. 8.3% n.a.

NOTES:
a. Source: Student Outcomes 

Survey, NCVER.

b. Explanatory Note: The Institute 
is unable to provide statistically 
valid Institute level data for 2008, 
2010, 2012 and 2014 as it is not 
available.  Commencing from 
2005 statistically reliable Institute 
level data has been available from 
NCVER. This is available on a 
biennial basis.
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3. Achievement of Institute Profile
This performance indicator reports the effectiveness of the Institute in meeting Delivery and Performance Agreement targets through 
which Challenger is resourced to deliver courses under Government purchased funding guidelines. This purchased delivery took into 
consideration the needs of the local community, individuals and the training plans of industry. 

Table 4 shows the percentage of Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) achieved for activities as contracted with the Department of 
Training and Workforce Development for vocational education and training delivery through the Delivery and Performance Agreement.

    Profile Achievement = Actual Delivery and Performance Agreement SCH Achieved

    Target SCH contained within the Delivery and Performance Agreement (first agreement)

Table 4.1: Profile Achievement

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

105.88% 103.41% 99.20% 103.24% 91.4%

NOTES:
a. Source: Challenger Institute Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 2014 and the College Management Information  

System (CMIS).

b. Derivation: DPA data represents the actual achievement of SCH in respective years.

c. Variation: Actual Profile delivery for 2014 was approximately 9 per cent less than the initial planned target for the year (first 
agreement). See Table 5 below. The variation is largely due to reduced demand for publicly funded courses following student 
fee increases introduced under the State Government’s Future Skills policy and the downturn in economic activity in the State. 
Many courses have been impacted, including enrolments in parts of Challenger’s catchment area with a lower socio-economic 
demographic which would be more responsive to such changes. In accordance with normal Profile planning and delivery processes 
of review and adjustment during the year, Challenger negotiated changes with the Department for Training and Workforce 
Development to the initial planned target.

KEy PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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KEy PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Table 5: Profile Analysis for Challenger 

2012 2013 2014

Actual Profile 
(SCH)

Actual Profile 
(SCH)

Initial Planned 
Profile  
(SCH)

Actual  
Profile  
(SCH)

Variation 
Planned vs 

Actual (SCH)

Variation 
Planned vs 
Actual %

TOTAL –  
Challenger Institute 4,936,112 5,031,510 4,680,137 4,277,012 403,125 8.6%

 
NOTES:
a. Source: Challenger Institute Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 2014 and the College Management 

Information System (CMIS).

b. Derivation: DPA data represents the actual achievement of SCH in respective years. ‘Planned’ data is obtained 
from the DPA, and ‘actual’ SCH from the College Management Information System (CMIS).
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Key Efficiency Performance Indicators
4. Overall cost per SCH
The overall cost per SCH demonstrates the efficiency with which Challenger manages its 
resources to enable the provision of vocational education and training programs.

              
Overall Cost =

                  2014 actual costs = total cost of services

              Total SCH 

Table 6: Cost per SCH

2009 
ACTUAL

2010 
ACTUAL

2011 
ACTUAL

2012 
ACTUAL

2013 
ACTUAL

2014 
TARGET

2014 
ACTUAL

Variation 
2014 

Actual vs 
Target

$12.74 $13.06 $13.12 $14.38 $14.40 $14.44 $14.83 $0.39

NOTES:
a. Source: Financial statements and the College Management Information System.

b. Derivation: The total delivery cost per SCH is calculated by dividing the total cost of 
services measured on an accrual basis by the total SCH delivered. The total SCH is the 
total number of enrolments multiplied by the hourly duration of these modules as registered 
in the College Management Information System in accordance with the Australian 
Vocational Education and Training Management Information Statistical Standard. Delivery 
from all funding sources is included. The total cost of services figure is obtained from the 
annual Financial Statements.

c. Variation: get was not achieved due to a decrease in total SCH, which resulted in 
increased cost per SCH.

KEy PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Glossary of terms used 
in the key performance 
indicators
Delivery and Performance 
Agreement (DPA)
A resource agreement under 
the Vocational and Training Act 
1996, between the Department 
of Training and Workforce 
Development representing the 
Minister for Training and Workforce 
Development and Challenger 
Institute of Technology Governing 
Council for the delivery of 
vocational education and training 
for the agreed calendar year.

Student Curriculum  
Hours (SCH)
The nominal hours assigned to a 
program of study by the curriculum 
or, in the absence of an endorsed 
curriculum, by common agreement 
with the Department of Training 
and Workforce Development’s 
Statistical Unit.
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DISCLOSURES AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Ministerial Directives 
No ministerial directives were received 
during the financial year.

Other Financial Disclosures
Pricing Policies of Services Provided 
Fees and charges levied by the institute 
were in accordance with the requirements of 
the following:

• Vocational Education and Training Act, 
1996

• Vocational Education and Training 
Regulations, 1996

• Policy Guidelines for Publicly Funded 
Registered Training Organisations (RTO)

Capital Works 
CAPITAL PROJECTS INCOMPLETE

Murdoch Campus Stage 4
Incorporating a mixture of both new buildings 
as well as a refurbishment of the existing 
facilities, Murdoch Stage 4 will accommodate 
training and administrative functions 
decanted from the Beaconsfield and ETech 
Campuses. The project is expected to go 
to tender in April 2015 with construction 
commencing later in the year for completion 
by the end of 2016.

Project budget approx. – $41.97M (Total 
project cost, including other ancillary works 
Approx. $46.5M).

ACEPT Stage 2
Further to the decanting of Beaconsfield, 
ACEPT Stage 2 will house a number of 
Engineering disciplines including Electrical, 
Electronic, Civil, Structural and Mechanical. 
The project encompasses a combination 
of both new facilities and additions to 
the existing building stock. The project 
commenced in 2014 and it is expected to 
be completed in 2017.

Project budget approx. – $14.4M

Capital Works
CAPITAL PROJECTS COMPLETED

Peel Health and Community Services 
Training Centre
Construction on the State Government 
Royalties for Regions program funded 
project commenced in November 2013 by 
builders Pindan Constructions. The centre 
which features specialist Aged Care and 
Child Care facilities, as well as a number 
of general teaching rooms was completed 
late December 2014. It is expected that 
the Centre will be operational from the 
beginning of the 2015 academic year.

Employment and Industrial Relations
EMPLOyMENT 
AND INDUSTRIAL 
RELATIONS

2014 2013 2012

Average full-time 
equivalent including 
casual staff

675 690 709

Average head count 831 884 884

Staff Development
Challenger has a commitment to the 
professional development of its employees. 
Our strategies are to build a highly skilled, 
professional and adaptable workforce 
with the ability to respond to workforce 
development needs, as well as the needs of 
the community and individuals.

In 2014, Challenger employees received 
16,552 hours of in-house and external 
training 

Workers Compensation 
Thirteen claims for workers compensation 
were lodged in 2014, two of which were 
declined by RiskCover and three are still 
pending. Six claims were lost time injuries, 
and two claims were for hearing loss. In 
2013 there were eight claims, including 
3 lost time injuries, two were declined by 
RiskCover. This is a 60% increase in claims 
on the previous year.
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GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES

Expenditure on Advertising, Market Research,  
Polling and Direct Mail 
ELECTORAL ACT 1907 SECTION 175ZE

In compliance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, Challenger Institute of 
Technology is required to report on expenditure incurred during the financial year in 
relation to advertising agencies, market research organisations, polling organisations, 
direct mail organisations and media advertising organisations.

Details are as follows: 

EXPENDITURE ON ADVERTISING, MARKET 
RESEARCH, POLLING AND DIRECT MAIL $

COST OF SERVICES

Expenditure with Advertising Agencies

Adcorp Austalia   $14,670 

Expenditure with Market Research Agencies                                   

Expenditure with Polling Agencies                                 

Expenditure with Direct Mail Agencies  

PMP Print Pty Limited           $23,749 

Expenditure with Media Advertising Agencies  

Media Decisions         $118,582 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE      $157,001 

Contracts with Senior  
Officers
At the date of reporting, other than normal 
contracts of employment of service, no Senior 
Officers, or firms of which Senior Officers are 
members, or entities in which Senior Officers 
have substantial interests had any interests 
in existing or proposed contracts with the 
Institute and Senior Officers.

Other Legal Requirements
Compliance with Public Sector 
Management Act Section 31(1) 

1. Challenger Institute of Technology has 
complied with the Public Sector Standards 
in Human Resource Management, the West 
Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and 
Challenger Institute of Technology’s Code 
of Conduct.

2. The Institute has put in place procedures 
designed to ensure such compliance 
and conducted appropriate internal 
assessments and reviews of the relevant 
policies.

3. The applications made for breach of 
standards reviews and the corresponding 
outcomes for the reporting period are:

NUMBER LODGED 4

Number of breaches found, including 
details of multiple breaches per application 0

Number still under review 1
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People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to make 
complaints to a public authority. 

1. Challenger provides grievance and 
harassment mediators for staff and 
students to assist with the complaints 
process upon request. 

2. The complaints handling procedure is 
transparent and user-friendly and has 
been noted by the WA NDCO office as 
an example of best practice.

People with disabilities have the 
same opportunities as other people to 
participate in any public consultation 
by a public authority. 

1. Implementation of an accessibility 
guideline checklist for use in the 
planning of events.

2. Ongoing – state student satisfaction 
survey and AQTF learner survey 
conducted as well as focus groups with 
students on particular issues at the 
request of the Program Areas.

People with disabilities receive 
information from a public authority in a 
format that will enable them to access 
the information as readily as other 
people are able to access it.

1. Website upgrade completed.
2. The purchase and installation of site-

wide licenses for JAWS and Zoom text 
has significantly increased the current 
availability of this software to students.

People with disabilities receive the 
same level and quality of service from 
the staff of a public authority as other 
people receive from the staff of that 
public authority.

1. E-Scholar program implemented as 
planned.

2. Provision of a talk on suicide prevention 
by SafeTalk to students enrolled in the 
youth program at Rockingham campus. 
This initiative was a joint collaboration 
between Challenger Institute and 
Rockingham Council.  

3. The GATE Connections program 
implemented a craft program in an 
informal setting for students with mental 
health concerns. While the projects are 
not assessed, the value of the approach 
lies in the fact that craft provides a way 
of occupying and relaxing students and 
assists in getting conversation flowing 
on topics that concern them resulting in 
an increase in confidence and a range 
of positive outcomes.

Disability Access and Inclusion 
Plan (DAIP) Outcomes 
Challenger Institute is committed to providing 
optimum access and service to people with 
disabilities. The following provide an outline 
of Challenger’s current initiatives during 2014 
to address the DAIP outcomes:

People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to access 
the services of, and any events organised 
by, a public authority.

1. Implementation of a transition program for 
the Gate Abilities class. This involves the 
formal transitioning of students from special 
education settings to tertiary training 
environments.

2. Online delivery of CGEA units to assist an 
individual student with chronic and ongoing 
medical issues.

People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to access 
the buildings and other facilities of a 
public authority.

1. Liaison with Rockingham regional library 
for the provision of a designated resource 
room for use by students with a disability if 
required. 

2. Allocation of a room at Rockingham 
campus expressly for Participation 
Assistance and review sessions to take 
place to provide support for students with a 
disability.

GOVERNMENT POLICy REqUIREMENTS
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Compliance with Public Sector 
Standards and Ethical Codes 
In accordance with S31(1) of the Public	
Sector	Management	Act	1994, Challenger 
Institute of Technology implemented the 
following measures to ensure compliance 
with public sector standards, the WA Code of 
Ethics and our own agency code of conduct.

• Misconduct and Complaints Management 
Framework in place and revised where 
necessary, with the Director of People and 
Safety named as the Corruption Control 
Coordinator.

• Challenger Code of Conduct and Code 
of Ethics aligned with WA Public Sector 
Conduct Guide and made available on the 
intranet. 

• 100 per cent of Managers/Supervisors 
have completed accountable and ethical 
decision making training. 

• 100% compliance with Crime and 
Corruption Commission requirements for 
investigations.

Recordkeeping Plan 
Challenger Institute of Technology has an 
approved Recordkeeping Plan as prescribed 
by the State Records Act 2000. Moreover, 
as prescribed by the State Records 
Commission Principles and Standards 2002 
(Standard 2, Principle 6) Challenger is 
required to report on:

• The efficiency and effectiveness  
of the record keeping system 

 A compliant recordkeeping system is to 
be evaluated not less than once in every 
5 years. Challenger has been audited 
by Business Consultants 2020 Global 
meeting the standards prescribed under 
the Recordkeeping Plan. Moreover, 
continuous improvement is ongoing both 
at the Institute level and through the 
STP Records Managers Network forum 
which meets quarterly. A highlight this 
year has been the finalisation of the Key 
Performance Indicators for State Training 
Providers.

• Recordkeeping training program
 It is a requirement that all staff complete 

an online recordkeeping awareness 
training course. All Challenger staff 
are enrolled in this course with a 99% 
completion rate. Notwithstanding, basic 
and advanced TRIM Training courses are 
run regularly which looks at the practical 
aspects of capturing significant business 
and corporate records.

• The efficiency and effectiveness of the 
recordkeeping training program 

 The record keeping training program is 
available online and is easily accessible 
to staff with nearly 100% completing the 
assessment correctly. Its effectiveness 
is demonstrated by staff registering for 
TRIM training that equips them to manage 
the corporate and business records and 
enhances the Institute’s compliance 

regime that sits around the State	Records	
Act. There is also a growing interest in 
Advanced TRIM Training that utilises 
features such as document management 
revision and version control.

• The organisation’s induction program 
 The online record keeping awareness 

training course (which addresses 
employee roles and responsibilities 
in regard to their record keeping 
responsibilities) has been fully integrated 
with the Institute’s formal induction 
program. The Induction program is also 
completed online and all new staff are 
expected to complete all components 
within 2 weeks of commencement.

Freedom of Information
Freedom of Information – 
Applications
There were no applications during the 
financial year 2014.

Freedom of Information –  
Information Statement
A formal information statement is available 
on Challenger’s Internet website.

GOVERNMENT POLICy REQUIREMENTS
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OCCUPATIONAL SAFETy AND HEALTH AND INJURy MANAGEMENT

Summary of findings

• Challenger managers demonstrate a 
strong commitment to occupational health 
and safety.

• Well-established processes are in place 
for OSH planning, consultation, hazard 
management and training.

• Systems exist in which staff have 
access to occupational safety and health 
documentation and plans.

• OSH training has been identified and 
opportunities are being provided for all 
employees.

• Staff are regularly represented and 
consulted via management, safety 
representatives, and safety and health 
committees.

• Strategies have been implemented to 
ensure a safe learning environment for 
students.

Occupational Safety, Health 
and Injury Management 
(Public	Sector	Commissioner’s	Circular	
2009-11:	Code	of	Practice:	Occupational	
Safety	and	Health	in	the	Western	Australian	
Public	Sector).

Agencies are to report on their occupational 
safety, health and injury management 
performance and commitment in relation to 
the following (minimum requirement): 

•  A statement of the agency’s commitment 
to occupational safety and health and 
injury management with an emphasis on 
Executive commitment. 

•  A description of the formal mechanism 
for consultation with employees on 
occupational safety and health matters. 

•  A statement of compliance with injury 
management requirements of the 
Workers’ Compensation and Injury 
Management Act 1981 including the 
development of return to work plans.

•  A statement confirming that an 
assessment of the occupational safety 
and health management system has 
been completed (within the past five 
years or sooner depending on the risk 
profile of the agency) using a recognised 
assessment tool and reporting the 
percentage of agreed actions completed 

•  A report of annual performance for 2014 
against the following: C
ha
lle
ng
er
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Annual performance for 2014 against the following targets

INDICATOR TARGET ACTUAL 2013 ACTUAL 2014 COMPARISON TO 
PREVIOUS yEAR

Number of fatalities Zero (0) 0 0 Unchanged

Lost time injury/disease 
(LTI/D) incidence rate

Zero (0) or 10% reduction 
on previous year 0.16 1.42 Increase from 8 to 13 LTI’s

Lost time injury  
severity rate

Zero (0) or 10% 
improvement on previous 

year
0 3 Increase from 0 to  

3 injuries

Percentage of injured 
workers returned to work 
within (i) 13 weeks and (ii) 
26 weeks

Greater than or equal  
to 80% 100% 80% Decrease

Percentage of managers 
trained in occupational 
safety, health and 
injury management 
responsibilities

Greater than or equal  
to 80% 9% 59% Increase

 
2013/14 Occupational safety and health initiatives
Occupational safety and health initiatives in 2014 included: 

• Tender for an electronic safety management system.
• Staff safety perception survey.
• Hearing test for employees working in prescribed high risk areas.
• Ergonomic assessments and manual handling training.
• Intranet information page for issues relevant to an ageing workforce.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETy AND HEALTH AND INJURy MANAGEMENT
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SECTION 40 ESTIMATES FOR 2015

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 2015 ESTIMATE 
$ 

ASSETS
Current Assets
Current Assets 6,218,630
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,050,000
Inventories 214,736
Receivables 2,518,311
Other current assets 636,171
Other financial assets 6,196,918
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 0

0
Total Current Assets 17,834,766

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 0
Inventories 0
Receivables 0
Property, plant and equipment 184,835,400
Intangible assets 0
Other non-current assets 0

Total Non-Current Assets 184,835,400
TOTAL ASSETS 202,670,166
 
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 3,462,910
Borrowings 0
Amounts due to the Treasurer 0
Provisions 11,288,541
Other current liabilities 321,142
"Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified
as held for sale” 0

Total Current Liabilities 15,072,593

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables 0
Borrowings 0
Provisions 2,421,943
Other non-current liabilities 0

0
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,421,943
TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,494,536

NET ASSETS 185,175,630

EqUITy
Contributed Equity 72,773,225
Reserves 91,426,034
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) 20,976,371
TOTAL EqUITy 185,175,630

In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 953 the annual estimates for the current financial year (2014) are hereby included 
in the Annual Report. These estimates do not form part of the financial statements and are not subject to audit.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2015 ESTIMATE 
$ 

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 65,636,808
Supplies and services 18,731,260
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5,263,852
Finance costs 0
Grants and subsidies 18,708
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 0
Cost of sales 869,020
Other expenses 5,579,271

Total Cost of Services 96,098,920

Income
Revenue
Fee for service 16,209,922
Student charges and fees 16,304,323
Ancillary trading 697,628
Sales 1,178,947
Commonwealth grants and contributions 2,920
Interest revenue 752,502
Other revenue 1,628,698

Total Revenue 36,774,941

Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets   0
Other gains 0

0
Total gains 0

Total Income 36,774,941
NET COST OF SERVICES (59,323,979)

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
State funds 52,252,445
Assets assumed/(transferred) 0
Resources received free of charge 1,492,536
Royalties for regions 0
Total income from State Government 53,744,981
                                         SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (5,578,998)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Changes 0
Gains/lo 0

0

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (5,578,998)
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